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m Background information

The name "Kibabii’

The name ‘Kibabii’ has profound historical
significance. The “Kibabii’
linguistically linked to one of the local

communities means livestock returning to

word

a cowshed or a sanctuary. Symbolically,
the University is a place where people
from all walks of life would come to gather
for purposes of gaining knowledge and
skills, a place of sanctuary from ignorance.
The University is located off Bungoma-
Malaba road, seven kilometers from the
central business district (CBD) of Bungoma
town. The University sits on 28.3 hectares
piece of land.

The History of Kibabii University

The establishment of Kibabii University
(KIBU) is traced to the origins of Kibabii
Teachers’ Training College, the precursor
to the current University. The History of a
Teacher Training College in Kibabii dates
back to the pre-independence period. The
idea was initiated by the Mill Hill Fathers
in 1932, This college trained P4 Teachers
beitween 1932 and 1942 and F3 between
1958 and 1961 in the current St Mary's
High School, Kibabii. In 1962 however, the
College was moved to Eregi.

The proposed Kibabii Teachers Training
College
remained a mirage for more than twenty
years until 19™ Septembez, 2007,

in Bungoma South District
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when the process of actualizing this dream
was initiated. The 3 president of the
Republic of Kenya, His
President Mwai Kibaki graced the ground
breaking ceremony at the proposed site.

Excellency

The construction works at the College
were immediately commenced with the
completion of
operationalization date for the college set
for the 25th of May 2011. During this
period, the project employed 700 workers

thus contributing to employment creation

construction and

in Bungoma County.

After inauguration, leaders from Bungoma
County requested His Excellency President
Kibaki to declare the
constructed facilibes for Kibabii Diploma

Mwai newly
Teachers’ College tov be converted to
Kibabii University College. This request
was accepted and formalized by Legal
MNotice MNo. 115 of August 2011 that
established Kibabii University College as a
constituent College of Masinde Muliro
University of Science and Technology.

The journey to becoming a fully-fledged
university was completed on 14th
November 2015 when Kibabii received
Charter from His Excellency President
Uhuru Kenyatta.
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@ Qur Identity; Logo and Corporate Colors

The features appearing on the University Logo have the following meanings attached to

them:-

Map of Africa - Kibabii University is in Africa with
= |ot ef potential and something good can come
@it of Africa

The Shield indicates protection or
defense of our core values

AE B N T

The Ribbons - Dapicts unlimited cr‘eatlu&y anel
resilisnes
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E Principal Activities

The mandate of the University, as contained in the Kibabii University Charter

(2015) are/is to;

a) Provide directly, or in collaboration with
other instititons of higher learning,
faciliies for university education
including  technological,  scientific,
professional education and research;

b) Advance knowledge and its practical
application by research, innovation and
other means;

¢) Disseminate the outcomes of research by
various means, and commercially exploit
the results of such research;

d) Participate in technological innovation as
well as in the discovery, creation,
transmission and enhancement of
knowledge, and fo stimulate the
intellectual life in the economic, social,
cultural, scientific, and technological
development/ other organizations;

e) Coniribute to industrial  and
technological development of sodety m
collaboration and partnership with
industry and other organizations;

f) Develop  quality relevant
programmes for degrees, diplomas and
certificates;

g) Establish colleges, faculties, schools,
centres, institutes, departments, and
other resources and administrative units
as may be appropriate;

h) Inculcate and promote a culture of
innovation, critical inquiry and creativity
in art, science, technology, engineering,
and education, amongst staff, students,

and

and society;
i) Develop an institution of excellence in
teaching, training, scholarship,

entrepreneurship, research, consultancy,

community service, among other
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educational services and products, with
emphasis on technology and its
development, impact and application to
society;

j) Provide a  multi-level system of
education and training that is relevant
to the needs of the community covering
a wide range of fields and levels with
provision for recognition of prior
learning and flexibility of transition

between educational levels;

k) Provide high quality faciliies for
educational, research,  residential,
commercial, cultural, social,
recreational, sporting, and other
activibes;

1) Facilitate student mobility between

programmes of study at different
universities;

m) Participate in commercial ventures and
activities that promote the objectives of
the institution;

n) Foster the general welfare of staff,
students, and the commumnity;

0) Provide opportunities for development
and further training for the staff of the
institution;

p) Develop and provide educational,
cultural, professional, technical and
vocational services to the community,
and in particular foster corporate social

responsibility;

q) Facilitate the development, provision,

and expansion of services, programmes,
and other products in ways that are
easily accessible and which reflect the

principles of equity and social justice;



Principal Activities

Conduct examinations, and grant such )
academic awards as may be provided for

in the Statutes, and to syndicate
examinabions for awards at other u)
institutions as may be approved by
Senate;

Determine who may teach, what may be
taught, and how it may be taught in the

University;

Promote sociai-economic development in
line with the couniry’s development
agenda; and

Ensure University sustainability and
adoption of the best practices in
University management and
institutionalization of systems of checks
and balances.

PHILOSOPHY
Kibabii University embadies the view that Science,

MOTTO

Knowledge for Development

. Technology and Inﬂﬂveﬂun are :ntl!:a! for sustaireble
uﬂﬂﬂﬂarh of : farths

L]
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- Our Values

To undertake its mission and realize its vision, Kibabii University upholds the following six
(6) Core values, which are anchored in the acronym EASITA:-

To operationalize the core values, “KIBU aspires to produce scholars who embody
Excellence, Accountability and Transparency, Social responsibility, Innovation, and are of
Integrity while utilizing their Academic freedom in performing their duties”.

EXCELLENCE

L AND TRANSPARENCY
o ml'a_ipiﬂin the raliopale off
o o woid any actitns that riight izorder

tunikies for the

rbeachiing.

ACADEMIC FREEDDM

TnoUnivarsiky ghall anceurage the spirk of fresand
critigal Ehowght, and roflesthe Inouiny among siodants
gnd staff.
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FIDUCIARY OVERSIGHT ARRANGEMENTS

Audit and Risk and Compliance Commitiee activities

The University council has established 2 Committee which provides oversight on the University’s
financial and other management as outlined on page xxvii of this report. The University also has an
internal Audit department that reports to the Council Commitiee.

Parliamentary Commiites activities

The Vice Chancellor is accountable to the MNational Assembly for the University’s financial
management. The Conetitution of Kenya, 2010 135(3) subject to clause (4), requires that the accounts
of all governments and State organe be audited by the Auditor-General. Upon Audit, the Annual
reports and financial statements are submitied to the National Assembly to ascertain whether the

finances of the University were prudently managed.

HEADQUARTERS

Kibabii University

Off Bungoma-Chwele Road
PO, Box 1699 - 50200,
BUNGOMA

Tel. 020-2028660/ 0708-0859934
SO734-831729

Email: enquiries@kibu.ac.ke

BANKERS

Fenya Commercial Bank
Bungoma Branch

P. . Box 380, 50200
BUNMGORMA

Barclays Bank Limited
Bungoma Branch

P. . Box 91, 50204
BUNGOMA

Standard Chartered Bank Kenya Limited
Bungoma Branch

P. O. Box 2531, 50200

BUNGOMA

Equity Bank Limited
Bungoma Branch

P. 0. Box 2450 - 50200
BUNGOMA

Mational Bank of Kenya Limited
Bungoma Branch

P. O. Box 25 - 50200
BUNGOMA
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CONTACTS

Telephomne: {254) 020-2028660/
0708-0859934 /0734-831729
E-mail: enquiries@kibu.ac ke
Website: www kibw ac ke

Family Bank Limited
Bungoma Branch

P. O. Box 1068 - 30200
BUNGOMA

Cooperative Bank of Kenya Limited
Bungoma Branch

P. 0. 1964 - 50200

BUNGOMA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Aunditor General

Kenya National Audit Office
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O. Box 30084

GPO 00100 Nairobi, Kenya

PRINCIPAL LEGAL ADVISOR

The Attorney General

State Law Office

Harambee Avenue

P.0. Box 40112 City Square 00200
Mairobi, Kenya



E UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

Dr. Ernest Mwangi Njoroge,
CHAIRMAN OF COUNCIL

Joined in 2017 as the Chairman of Council. Holds Bachelor of Veterinary Medicine
(UON), MSc, Clinical Studies, Medicine (UON), MBA Strategic Management (Africa
Nazarene University), and PhD Clinical Studies, Epidemiology (UON). He has over
24 years of teaching, management and leadership experience working with
University of Nairobi, NGOs, European Union, and USAID Kenya and East Africa.
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Mr. Hussein Abdi Farah,
MEMEBER

Date of Birth, 28" August 1960,

Joined in 2017 as a8 Council member.
He is Chairman Awards and Sealing

Committee of Council. Mr. Farah
holds a Certificate in Medical
Laboratory  Technology  {MTC,

Kakamega), Diploma in Medical
Laboratory Technology (KMTC,
Mairobi), M5c. in Medical
Microbiology (LSHTM, UK), and
FPostgraduate Diploma in Medical
Microbiology (LSHTM, UK). He is a
seasoned Microbiclogist, His
experience spans over 20 years.
Currently, he is the Chief Executive
Officer at Fiveways Medical &
Diagnostic {K) Limited.
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Mr. Vincent Moseti Nyabiosi,
MEMBER

Date of Birth 28" September 1984,

Joined in 2017 as a Council member.
He is the Chairman Audit Risk and
Compliance Committee of Council.
Mr. Nyabiosi holds a Bachelor of
Laws (Hons) (UoN), Diploma in Law
(KSL), Master of Law, Public Finance
& Financial Services Law (UoN), CPA
and CPS. He has over 10 years'
experience in Tax Management and as
Lecturer at the Strathmore School of
Law. Currently, he is Regional Tax
Manager - East Africa at MIH East
Adrica Limited.




UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

Date of birth: 16® October, 1964

Eng. Mungatana joined in September, 2018.
He is the Chairman Strategy, Finance and
Development Committee of Council. He

holds BS (Hons) in  Mechanical
Engineering  and MBEA (Business
Administration) from  University of

Mairobi, and currently pursuing FPhD in
Business Administration (Supply Chain
Management) at Jomo Kenyatta University
of Agriculture and Technology. He 15 a
Corporate member of the Institute of
Engineers of Kenya (IEK) and a Registered
Engineer (EBK). He is currently the Chief
Technical and Environmental Officer,
Tsave Power Company Litd. He has
previously worked for Kenya Pipeline
Company Ltd, Kenya Breweries Company
Ltd and Kenya Power and Lighting
Company Lid.

-
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Dr. Joyce Wanjiru Ngure,
MEMBER

Date of birth: 15th May 1977

Dr. Ngure joined in December, 2018.
She helds a PhD, Vegetable Sciences
{Horticulture), Nanging Agricultural
University, China, Masters in
Horticulture (Olericulture), Egerton
University and BSc in Horticulture,
Egerton University

She is currently an Assistant Director
Research in the Ministry of
Educatdon in the Directorate of
Research Science and Technology as
well as a Project Coordinator for the
National Physical Sciences and
Research Laboratories.



E UNIVERSITY COUNCIL
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Mr. Michael Jasper Obonyo,
Rep Cabinet Secretary, The
MNational Treasury, Ex-Officio

Date of Birth 7 April, 1970,

He joined in August, 2015 as a Council
member. He is highly experienced in
information communication matters in
areas of public relatons. He is
currently Public Relations Officer in
the Pensions Departmen: National
Treasury. Mr Obonyo holds B.A.
(Hons) UoN, Kenya (1992), PGD (Mass
Communication) Kenya Institute of
Mass Communication (KIMC), Kenya
(1998) and Master of Arts in
Communication Studies, UoN, Kenya
(2011)
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Mr. Tom Mboya Wambua,
MEMBER

Date of birth: 1968

Mr. Mboya joined in December, 2018. He
is a business man and a consultant in
strategic  management and  risk
management. He has interesis in banking,
insurance, distribution, real estate and
security services. He holds MBA degree,
Bachelor of Commerce both from the
University of Nairobi and currently
pursuing a Ph.D. in Strategic Management
in Jomo Kenyatta University. He is the
Honorary Consular General for Iceland in
Kenya. He is the founder and CEO of
various companies. Previously, he worked
for British American Tobacco Company,
until 2009 when he ventured in to privaie
business. He has wide international
business exposure,
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MEMBER

Date of Birth, 29* December, 1963,

Joined in 2017 as a member of Council and
Chairman Governance and Human Eesource
Committee of the University Council. He is
also the Councill representative in the
University Staff Pensions Board of Trustees.
He holds a Bachelor of Science, Geology
{UoN) and Master of Engineering,
Hydrology and Water Resources (IHE Delft,
The Metherlands). Mr. Asunah has broad
expertise of over M) years In areas of
Hydrology, Geology, Water resources
engineering, Corporate Governance,
Arbitration & Alternative Dispute Resolution
({ADE) and Environmental management in
both public and private sectors. Currently, he
is a Technical Advisor at Rural Water &
Sanitation Organization (WATERSAN) and
the Vice - Chairman of the Centre for
Corporate  Governance (CCG) Alumni
MNetwork; and a Mediator of the High Court
of Kenya.

BABI UMIVERSITY |
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Prof. |saac |para Odeo
Vice Chancelior
SECRETARY TO COUNCIL

Date of Birth 19th May, 1955,

Joined in 2013 as the Chief Executive
and Secretary of Coundil. Holds B.ED
(Arts) (UON), MED (Kenyatta
University), and PhD (Maoi University).
He is an educationist with over 30 years
of teaching experience at institutions of
Higher learning. Prof. Odec has also
held various leadership positions in the
same insttutions.



ﬂ Fiduciary Management 4

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended
30th June 2020 and whoe had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

Prof. Isaac lpara Odeo
Vice Chancellor

Date of Birth 19th May, 1955,

Joined in 2013 as the Chisf Executive
and Secretary of Council. Helds B.ED
(Arts) (UON), MED (Kenyaha
University), and FhD (Mo
University). He is an educationist
with over 30 wyears of teaching
experience at instdtutions of Higher
learning. Prof. Odec has also held
various leadership positions in the
same Instfbons.

KISABH UNINWERSTY |

e B e e e e o e e T P o o o T o o T

orof. Donzid Namaszks Siamba
DWC [Administration, Finance
and Deveiopment)

Date of Birth 14th Octobear, 1960,

joined mm 2019 as a member of
Management Board. Holds Bachelor
of Veterinary Medicine (BVM)
(UON), MSc. Vet Pathology &
Microbiology. (UON), and Ph.D.
Zoology {Parasitology} (Moi
University). He is an educationist
with wide research, teaching end
adminisiration experience of over 30
years at research institutions and
institutions of higher learning. Prof.
Siamba has also held various
leadership positions at the same
institutions.
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ﬂ Fiduciary Management

Prof. Or.-Ing, Benedict M. Mutua
Deputy Vice Chancellor {(Planning.
Partnerships. Research and Innovation)

Dtate of Birth 30th November, 1966,

Joined in 2016 as a member of the
Management Board. He hoids a B.Sc
{Eng.) (Egerton University), MEng. Sc
The University of Melbourne Australia,
Fh.D. and Post Doc. (Universitit fur
Bodenkultur-BOKLU, Vienna Austria).

He has over 25 years of teaching and
research experience at the university
level. He has held various leadership
positions at Egerton University and been
involved in research projects both at
Mational and Global levels. He has

special research interests in Water
Resources Engineering and Applied
Hydrology.

KERS B UMTVERSITY |

Prof. Julius Kiprop Mal
Ag. Deputy Vice
(Academics and Students Affairs)

Frof. Maiyo joined in 2020 as =&
member of Management Board.

He holds B.Ed Arts (Economics &
Mathematics) (Mol University) MPhil
Economics of  Education and
Management (Moi University),
Masters in Business Administration
(MBA). Indian School of Business

Management and Administration;
Doctor of Philosophy (PhD) in
Education (Interdisciplinary)

University of Pune and has over 15
vears  teaching  experience at
institutions of higher learning. He has
also held various leadership positions
at the same



Fiduciary Management

Dr. Ruth Atidal Mitala
Registrar (Administration & HR)

Dr. Mitalo joined in January 2020
a5 Registrar (Administration &
Humarn Resource). She nholds a
Fhi i Human FHEsource
Manageament - Uaoh, MBA
{(Human Rssource fManagsment)
- UoiM, B8A (Human Rssource
Managemesnt - First Class
Honotrs) - KEMU, Cerilfied
Public Secretary of Kenya (CPRS-
K} and Diploma in Human
Resource Management
{Technical Unlversity of Kenya).
She has owver 19 years
administrative and Human
Resource axpearnencs at
institutions of higher learning.
she Is a8 meamber of the Institute
of Human Fesource
Management TIHR | and
institute of Certified Secretaries
{icsh
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Prof. Ernest Sangai Mohochi
Registrar (Academics & Students Affairs)

Jained in 2018 as Registrar (Academic and
Students Affairs), Prof. Mohachi holds a
Bachelor of Arts (Kiswsahili) (Egerton
University), Master of (Kiswahili) (Egerton
University} and Ph.D. (Kiswahili) (Egerton
University). He has over 24 years of
experience In teaching at Institutions of
Higher Learning.



Fiduciary Management

Prof, Barack Abonyo
Reglstrar (Planning, Partnerships, Research
and Innovation)

Joined in 2018 as Registrar {FPartnerships,
Flanming & Innovation), Prof. Abonyo
holds a Bachelor Science (Kenyvatia
University), Master of Philosophy (Moi)
and Ph.D. (East Carclina University). He
has over 2V vears of experience in
teaching both at Institutions of Higher
Learning and High School levels.
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Dr. Allce Chemutal Mutai
Dean of Students

Joined in 2019 as Dean of Students. She
holds a Bachelor of Education (Arts)
(Moi University), Master of Philosophy
{M.Phil) in Educational Guidance and
Counselling, (Moi University), and
Doctor of Philosophy in Counselling
Psychology (PhD) (Egerton University).
Dr. Chemutai is a member of the Kenya
Universities Professional Counsellors
Association (KUPCA). She has over 29
years’ experience in both students affairs
and library management in institutions

of higher learning.
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Prot. samwel Mbugus
SHRCLDY, IET

Date of Birth 10th October, 1564,

Joined in 2014 as Director ICT and
Senicr Lecturer in the Department of
Information Technology. He holds a
Master of Science in Computer Based
Information Systems of the University of
Sunderland and PhD in Information
Technology fmom Masinde Muliro
University of Science and Technoiogy.
He iz a Chartered Engineer and an
assessor for Chartered  Engineer
registration for the Engineering Council
(UK). Dr. Mbugua is a member of the
ACM and BCS, He has over 20 years of
service in both civil service and
insttutions of higher learning,
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s, Nduky Charles Riisl
Deputy University Librarian

Drate of Birth 11th August, 1573,

Ms. Nduku joined in 2018 as Deputy
Librarian. He holders a Bachelor of
Library and Information Science and
Master of Library Information Science
from Kenyatta university. He previously
worked for Jaramogi Oginga Odinga
Undversity of Science &Technology,
South Eastern Kenya University, Kenva
Methodist University and Gikumene
Girls Secondary School lbraries. She has
over 20 years work experience in
institutions of higher leaming libraries.



ﬂ Fiduciary Management

Ms. Jessics Wanyonyi
Procurement Officer

Date of Birth 2%th June, 1970,

Joined in 2018 as Head of Procurement
Department. She holds a Bachelor of Science
Purchasing and Supplies Management and
MSc. Procurement and Logistics both from
Jomo Kenyatta University of Agriculture and
Technology. Ms Wanyonyi has over 10 years’
experience in procurement and supplies
functions. She is also a member of the

Institute of Purchasing and Supplies
Management and Kenya Institute of
Management,

KIBARR LBIVERSTTY |
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CPA Benjamin Musina Oduorl
Deputy Finance Officer

Date of Birth Ist August 1972,
Joined in 2013 as Deputy Finance
Officer. Mr. Oduori holds BBM
(Accounting & Finance) {Moi),
MBM (Accounting) (Moi}, and
CPA (K). He is a professional
accountant with over 18 years'
guditing and
the

experience  in
assurance and finance at
institutions of higher learning. He

is a member of ICPAK and ICIFA.



ﬂ Fiduciary Management

Nz Jecquaeilna & Wanjala
Lagal Officer
Joined Kibabii University in August 2015
as legal officer. She Helds & Bachelor of
Laws (LLB) University of Nairobi and
Diploma in Law from Kenya School of
Law (K5L). 5She is an advocate of the
High Cowrt of Kenya, having been
admitted in 1593, Miss Wanjala is a
member of the Law Saciety of Kenya with
27 years of experience as an Advocate.
She has 11 years experienced in the

University Sector.
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Mis. Johnstone Eshirers
In-chamge Health Unit

Date of Birth 29th October, 1970, joined
Kibabii University in 2012 as Deputy
Senior Clinical Officer and Head of
Department of Health services. Previously
worked for Masinde Muliro University
and Ministry of health respectively. Has
both  administrative and  clinical
experience of more than 18 years of
service. Trained up to master's level in
Community health at Great Lakes
University, University of Liverpool (UK],
Moi University and Kenya Medical
Training College. Holds professional
Diplomas in Community Health, Sexual
and Reproductive Health in Developing
Countries and Clinical Medicine and
Surgery.



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

On behalf of Kibabli University Council, ] am pleased o present the Annual Report for the
2019/ 2020 fnancal year. The focus marshalled at the beginning of the year placed University
operations on & positive trajectory untll the outhreak of Coromavirus 2019 (COVID-18)
pandemic, which affected ail facets of our operations,

The University is comrnitted to providing high quality teaching, research and exiension services
commensurate to the expectations of faculty, staff, students and other stakeholders through
embracing modern approsches that allow the provision of efficient and reliable services. That
the University was awarded 150 9001:2015 Certification, is a testament to the fact that the
University meets the International Standards and further that her processes comply with
regulatory and statutory requitements. In addition, we continue to fully embrace performance
management. Thiz vear Performance Contracting was cascaded to all staff and initial assessment
indicates that they successfully delivered prescribed performance outputs on time.

Academic Progranumes

The University contimues to offer competitive academic progranenes, | am thevefore happy o
note that the Univessity was competitively selected by the Inter-University Council of East
Aﬁmﬁﬂ&ﬁju:hﬁmﬂﬂmﬁdﬂm&!&uﬁmmtwﬂfmmm
Techaology and Master of Business Admindstration which attracted siv intemational students.
This speabs volumes about the resorce capacities available at Kibabdi University.

2019 Graduation Cazemony

The 4th Graduation Caremony presided over by His Bxcellency Hon, Uhuru Kenyatta CGIH.,
President of the Republic of Kenya and Commanderin-Chief of the Defence Forces and
Chancellor of Kibabil University was successful. A total of 1863 graduands distributed in mrms
of 42% female and 58% male were conferred with degrees and awarded diplomas and
certificates, We registered & modest but notable growth of 159, an incresse from 1704 graduinds
during 2018/ 2019 financial year.

Partnership and Linkages
In a bid to enhance research and visibility, the University has sealed strategic collaborative

partnerships with over fifty agreements and memoranda of understanding signed with
reputable institutons and organizations. -

Admindstration and Human Resource

To us excellence has remaired & brude mark. To sustain this, Council completed the recraitment
process for senior management staff including the Registrar {Admindsiration and Human
Resource) and Deputy Vice Chancellor (Administration, Finance and Development), to provide
contined improvernent in University leadership.

Capital Development Projects

[ am happy to note that the University now has the necessary infrastructure to provide a
conducive teaching and learming emvirenment, One of the most recent accomplishments in this
direction is the compiletion of the Women Students Hostel designed to provide the mech needed
accommodation for 412 students. Tt is nstructive to note that these achievements are attributed
tom a large extent to the financial prudence exercised by the Coundl and Managemant.

In 2019/ 2020 Enancial year, the Urdverslty revised the Strategic Plan 2016-2020 to align it to the
Govermnmant's Big 4 Agesda and the Medium-Term Plan (MTF) 1l of 201220222

KIBARI WIMAVERSITY | 24



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

The University continues to compete favourable natonally and globally. It is in this regard
that | am pleased to report that the University was ranked position 15 in Kenya and 8098
globally on webometric ranking at the close of the 2019/ 2020 financial year. This was an
improvement from position 19 in Kenya and 9060 Globally in January, 2020 ranking

As | finish, it is imperative that | mention the role of the University in community service,
MNotable among the many activities pursued is the University donation of Biguid soap, hand
sanitizers and masks to Bungoma County Government and the Kibabii Community to
contribute o the intervertions towards the conminment of COVID-1% pandemic in

Bungoma, within its Corporate Social Resporsibility mandate.

Finally, we have been able to record the above achisvements courtesy of the unwavering
support of the Chancellor, a far sighted Council committed Senate, and focused
Management, faithful Smff, disciplined students and valuable stakehclders who have
worked round the clock to ensure that the University competes favourably with her peers.

Thank you.

-.l'.'"L"Dr. Ernest Mwangi Njoroge
CHAIRMAN OF COUNCIL
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ANCELLOR'S REPORT

1 would like to take ﬂﬂsnpportuﬂtyhhighﬂght&mwmdduﬂmg&:ufm
financial year 2019/ 2020. First, it ls notable that the end of this FY has been one of the most
challenging in recent memory, There was the adven of the Novel COVID-19 pendemic that
is still with us. The sudden closure severely impacted on our operations. This has meant
higher with Hetle or no icome from our main IGU. Despite these, we have
mﬁMMnmwmamﬂmﬂwwmmmgammhﬂigmr
Edueation. To this end, great strides have been made towards accreditation of the School of
Nursing and we continue apace to ensure that we will e ready to admit ploneer students

in the mear futuie.

During the year in seview, fowr (4) acedemic programmes were aceredited by the
Commission of University Education (CUE) while seven (7) others have been forwarded for
review and approval. We also hope to grow our distance learning student populaton and
an application for approval to be a TVET course provider has also todged.

During the 201%/2020 Anancial year, our research capacity Incrensed with the number of
faculty with PHD incressing to fifty-three (33). This Increase in human capital has realized
an increase i the number of setive researchers and will go a long way in achieving our
research agenda.

There was a marked Tncrease in anrolment during the 2019/2020 Academic year. Kigl
welcomed a total of 1795 undergraduate students, an increase of 71.57% from the previous
year, The University also veceived & Intemational students from the region, on IUCEA
Scholarships.

As a University, we coptinue to grow otr alumni in numbers, quality and diversity. Just to
provide an overview. in the 4th Graduation Ceremony conducted during the vear, the
University had one thousand eight hundred and sixiy-three (1,863) students graduating,
representing @ modest growth from one thousand seven tundred and four {1704) in its
Third {3rd) Congregation in 2018, The breakdown was as follows: thirty-one (31}
Ceviificates accounting representing 1.66 %, two hundred and seventeen {217) Diplomas
accounting for 1155 %, one thousand five bundred and seventy-four {1574) Bachelor's
degrees accounting for 84.49 %, thivty (30) Mastexs' degyees accounting for 1.43 % and ten
{10) PhDs accounting for 0.54 %. This is a strong indicakion that the overall number of
graduates keeps rising without compromising quality.

in the past Financial Yeay, the University through the support of the Goverament of Kenya
constructed & new hostel for ferale students with & bed capacity of 412. The University
now has five Hostels, three for female and two for male students and this has enabled the
University to raise acconunodation capacity from the previous 1,536 o 1,948 students.

The Innovaticn Hub funded under the EU-AHEAD project was completed during ihe year
in review, the ICT hub funded to the tune of Kshabde Milion by the National Resenech
Fund is alse well on course and set to house an incubation cenre and a forensic laboratory,
These two projecs coniribute to a great axtent the University's capacity for research and
innovation as well as provided a good platform for tha University to deliver on its mandate
given the current circumstances, with the pandernic; this Is the direction i go as the current
divection is towards non-contact lemming.
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VICE CHANCELLOR'S REPORT

We also had a successhul mstallation of the surveillance egquipmert to the tune of Kshs.7.9 Million.
This will further ensure that security is enhanced within the university premises,

it is hoped that these additions will provide the framework needed o develop the haman capital as
the Kibabii Uniwersity 2016 - 2020 Strategic Plan places technology at the apex of the factors crucial
for learnmg and teaching in the 215t Centary.

During the period, the Usiversity recorded growth in the Unsiversity’s net worth from Kshs. 2274
Billion to Kshs.2 & Billion; this represents a 5.5% growth from the previous year, The University also
recorded & growth in funding for research. However, there was a marked decline in our sarpios
numbers from Kshe10.338 million reported last year to Kshs.0.887 million. This ran be partly
atiributzd to the effects of the worldwide pandemic and the resultant closures o all leaming
institutions.

Last bat not least, my sincere gratitude goes o Kibabii University Council, the entire Management
Board, our members of staff, the student fraternity, partners and donoss, for their continusd
commuitment and collaboration. | am confident that the University shall prosper and become a
beacon of success in the entire region. We are aiso happy 0 announce that cur Chairman of Council
received & bevm extension, for another 3 years, Wie commit our full sepport to him in his siewardship
towards this great University.

b~ B

Prof. Isnac {para Odeo,
Vice Chancellor
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REVIEW OF KIBABII UNIVERSITY'S PERFOMANCE

FOR FY 2019/2020

Kibabii University has six strategic directions and objectives within its 2016-2020 Strategic Flan.
The strategic directions are as follows:

Direction1: Promote and Maintain Excellence in Teaching and Learning

Direction2:  Support and Sustain Advancement in Research, Consultancy and Extension
DirecHon®  Enhance Administrative, Financial and Human Rescurce Management Systems
Directlon4: Invest in Marketing, Public Relations and Linkages

Direction5:  Expand, Maintain and Improve Physical Infrastructure and Structures.
Directlon 6 Improved Implementation of Health Services.

The University develops its annual work plans based on the 6 directions. Assessment of the
University’s performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The
University achieved its performance targets set for the FY 2019/2020 period under its (6)
strategic directions, as indicated below:

Direction 1: To offer quality and market
Promote and driven programmes in Programmes
Mainkain conformity with CUE and
Excellance in TVET Standards
Teaching and -
Learning To achieve a substantial Graduation rate 2377 1853
increase in student completion
To integrate ICT in academic | Programmes with ICT | 56 56
Programimes Programmaes
To expand library Resources MNo. of Library 2 2
fEsgurces initiated
To strengthen student welfare | No of student welfars |3 3
service services initated
Direction Ik To Strengthen Research in the | Staff and graduate &0 staff a2
Advancement in University students equipped
Research, with Knowledge on ao 35
Innovation, management of Students
Partnerships and research projects
Linkages . i
To enhance Research Signed collaboration 4 4
Collaboration bWalls
"To enhance safety of research | [PR registration 2 & Applications
and innavations 1 Patent
2 Copy Rights
2 Trademarks
Registered
To improve Community Community Cutreach |3 4
Qutreach Services activities conducted

EIEARN LMIVERSITY 38



REVIEW OF KIBABII UNIVERSITY'S PERFOMANC
FOR FY 2019/2020

To enhance resaarch Research proposals 23
submitted for fonding
Ta erhance dissemination of Publish books, Bock 1 1 book
research findings chapisrs and peer University | 9book Chapiers
reviewed artlcles in lewel book | 67 joumala
reputable journals Chapter
‘= et ;‘M:&m—-—_
Diiraction I | Ta strengthen the University s Implementation of QS 15C 9001:2015 Ra-
Enhance pcdministrative quality mansgament Carlification
Administrative, systems
Financial and Hurnan ] Launch of ISMS
Resowrcs Management F 27
Systems To Improve efficiency of service  jReduced laad Gme in Integration  [95%
provision sarving studenis, real time | with banks
updating of student
=3 deposits i
To promole good corpoeate University Counciland  jone training | Univessity Coundl
FOVEENANCE Management equipped  [on and UMB trainad
with governance skills governance |of corporate
amed OV BT
oL Mwongoza
To increasa the use of ICT in the Use of ILT in
University operations teaching, leaming
and meeting 5
- " i o
To Enharce Safety and Security of  |Reduced insecurity CCTV surveillance
Students, Staff and stakeholdars Incidents installed
Eibakdi police post
L ) established
To attract, develop and retain Reduced staff farmover | Recruitment |53 staff Members
competerit siaff rates
Fromation |12 Séaff Membars
i - - Traini 25 Staff Meambars
To enhance Anancial resource Growthin A4 3Fmillion 456 million
mohilization =
To enhance prudent financial Reduced panding bills 1% The Undversity did
MANAZEmEDt Honouring statutory not have any
obligations outstanding
stamtory obligation
ag at the clase of the
b i Y ot Y
Direction IV: To promote EIBU's image through | PR and Marketing office Public Relations
Invest in Marketing, enhancement of its visibility established Eebdarketing Office
Public Relations and | was established
Linkages 3 eschibitions
| Participation in Shows and Graduation
Exhiiv#ions cEremony was aived
Live on TV, The
Me. of adverts on print University rana
media & Elecivonic media bwro wesk prime
i coverage time advertisemeant
on TV and 5 adwerts
wara done on print
mucia
Ta strengthen marksting of the Increasad avwareness of the 33
Univetsity and its programmes University and her Schools hosted /
programmes visited during the
reporting period
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FOR FY 2019/2020

REVIEW OF KIBABII UNIVERSITY'S PERFOMANCE

Direction V: To expand and upgrade Completion of One student
Expand, Maintain | physical infrastructure the Women hostel that will
and Improve through completion of Student Hostel house 412
Physical planned constructions for students was
Infrastructure and | intended use completed
Structures. during the
year
To enhance energy Reduced costof | 10% 30%
management and electricity and
E conservation water
Direction VI: To Upgrade Kibabii Approval of Level 4 Health policy
Improved University Health Centre | University hospital was approved
Implementation | from level 3A to level 4 Health centre as
of Health hospital level 4 hospital
Services.
"To enhance Service Improved Procurement | A Modern
Delivery referral services | of an ambulance
and enhanced ambulance | and an
sterilization and electronic auto
services electronic clave were
auto clave procured
during the
year
To promote health within | A community Community | 2 Community
the community with health outreaches, | ouireaches
secking medical anc 1 free
behaviour camp medical camp
To enhance healthy Prevention of Quarterly Fumigation on
learning and working communicable fumigation | quarterly basis
environment diseases of University | Proper waste
premises management
& clean
environment
maintained
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The University Council, presided by the Chairman is a body established to govern the
University. The Council is appointed in accordance with the Universities Act, 2012 (No. 42 of
2012} by the Cabinet Secretary in charge of Ministy of Education. The Council provides
strategic direcdon, exercises conirol and remains accountable through effective leadership,
enterprise, integrity and good judgment. It is diverse in its composition, independent but
flexible, pragmatic, objective and focused on balanced and sustainable performance of the
University. The Council retains responsibility for establishing and maintaining the
institution's overall control of financial, operational and compliance issues as well as
implementing strategies for the long term success of the Instihuiion.

The membership of the Council includes:

1.  &independent Members appointed by the Cabinet Secretary in charge of Education

2. One (1) member representing the Principal Secretary in charge of the State Department
for University Education and Research, Ministry of Education

3. One {1) Member representing the National Treasury

4,  The Vice Chancellor as an ex-officio Mermber.

Appointment and Removal of Council Members

i. Every appointment is by name and by notice in the Kenya Gazette but ceases if the
Council member: Serves the appointing authority with a written notice of
resignation; or is absent, without the permission of the Chairperson, from the three
consecutive meetings; or Is convicted of an offence and sentenced to imprisonment
for a term exceeding six months or to a fine exceeding twenty thousand shillings; or
Is incapacitated by prolonged physical or mental illness from performing his duties
as a member of the Council; or Conducts himself in a manner deemed by the
appointing authority to be inconsistent with membership of the Council

ii.Any removal of a Council member under (i) above, shall be through formal
revocabion.

Council Chavker

The Council has a Charter that defines the Council's roles and responsibilities as well as
functions and structures in a way that supports the members in carrying out their strategic
oversight function. It provides the Council members with an opportunity to think creatively
and critically about how their strategic and operational plans align with the organization’s
strategic direction and expectations, with respect to govemnance. It helps the Council in
directing the organization to maximize the long term value of services provided for all
stakeholders.

The Charter is reviewed semi-annually and is available to ali members of the Council for
application and is posted on the Kibabii University's website for the information of
stakeholders,

The members of Council have committed themselves to the service of Kibabii University and
to uphold the tenets of good corporate governance by being innovative, transparent,
accountable, persons of integrity, socially responsive, as well as promote excellence and
exercise fairness in all their actvities
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Ethics and Conduct

The Council adheres to the Code of Conduct and Ethics for State Corporations {SCs) which
focuses on ethical conduct and integrity at the workplace.

It defines the University Councils’ commitment to the highest standards of behaviour so as o
contribute to the achievement of the national development goals. The Code sets out expectations
for individual behaviour necessary to meet these standards and includes requirements and
guidance to help carry out their roles with integrity and in compliance with the law. By
exemplifying the ethical behaviours and corporate values described in the Code, the University
Council is expected to uphold Articlel0 of the Constitution of Kenya on National Values and
Frinciples of Governance and Chapter 6 on Leadership and Integrity.

Conflict of Intevest Policy & Disclosures

A conflict of interest may arise where a Council member or close family member such as a
spouse, child, parent or sibling has private interests that could improperly iniluence the
performance of the Council member’s official duties and responsibilities. Conflict may also arise
where a Council member uses their office for personal gain.

Council members are required to avoid conflict of interest and deal at arms-length in any matter
that relates to the University. However, a Couneil member who identifies an area of conflict
shall be required to disclose any actual or potential conflict of interest to the Council In so
reporting, the Council member is required o provide all relevant information, including
information which relates to their immediate family members by blood or marriage which is
related to the area of conflict. When declared, the Council member shall abstain from decisions

where the conflict exists,

The Council Secretariat keeps a record of conflicts of interest declared, for accountability
purposes, and as a rule of good practice on appointment and on regular intervals or at any time
when circumstances change, all members shall in good faith disclose to the Council for
recording, any other business or interest likely to create a potential conflict of interest.

Council Bemuneration

Council members are remunerated for their services in accordance with State Corporations Act
provisions and/ or guidance from the State Corporations Advisory Committee. In line with best
practice, the remuneration includes Honoraria for the Chair of Council and attendance
allowances for all members.

Council Succession

The Kibabii University Council has put in place a succession plan for both the Council and
Management, which is reviewed regularly.

Council Performance

The Council conducts an annual evaluation to appraise its performance. The Council evaluation
provides an opportunity for Council members to identify strengths, collective skill gaps and
individual areas of improvement. The Council also reviews the performance of each Committee
against the agreed Terms of Reference. It also evaluates the performance of the Vice Chancellor.

Governance Audit

The Council is required to ensure that a governance audit of the organization is undertaken on
an annual basis. The purpose of the governance audit is to ensure that the organization
conforms to the highest standards of good governance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The governance audit covers the following parameters among others: Leadership and strategic
management; Transparency and Disclosure; Compliance with Laws and Regulabions;
Communication with stakeholders; Council independence and governance; Council systems and
procedures; Consistent shareholder and stakeholders’ value enhancement; and Corporate Social
Responsibility and investment.

Council Induction and Contineous Professional Development

In FY201%/2020, new Council members were inducted in order to familiarize themselves with their
responsibilities as Members of Council, general principles of corperate governance and Council
practices. The induction programme provided the Council members with an orientation of the
organization, strategic plans, financial status and policies, risk management, compliance
programmes and the Code of Conduct and Ethics. Members of the University Council were also
inducted on Mwongozo and trained on Corporate Leadership and Governance and Improving
Board Performance. These sessions were specifically selected in order to update the Council
members on emerging issues pertaining governance, audit and financial reporting, and management
of State Corporations.

Our Council's Composition

Diversity

The University Council has (%) members, (8) male and (1) female, who combined give various inputs

borrowing from their areas of expertise in the fields of Clinical studies, Epidemiology, Geology,

Hydrology, Arbitration, Envirommental Management, Law, Strategic Management, Governance,

Laboratory Technology, Medical Microbiology, Public Finance, Taxation, Communication and

Human Resource Management

Council Responsibilities

The University Council undertakes the following responsibilities;

1. The Council is the governing body of the University through which the University acts and
undertakes the following;

a) Administers the preperty and funds of the University in a manner and for the purposes
which promotes the interest of the University; but the Council does not charge or dispose
of immovable property of the University except in accordance with the procedures laid
down by the Government of Kenya;

b} Receives, on behalf of the University, donations, endowments, gifts, grants or other moneys
and make disbursements there from to the University or other bodies or persons;

¢) Provides for the welfare of the staff and students of the University;

d) May enter into association with other universities, or other institutions of learning, whether
within Kenya or otherwise, as the Council may deem necessary and appropriate; and

e) May, after consultation with the Academic Board, make regulations governing the conduct
and discipline of the students of the University.

2. All documents, other than those required by law to be under seal, made on behalf of the Council,
and all decisions of the Council may be signed under the hand of the Chairman, the Vice
Chancellor or any other members of the Council generally or specifically authorized by the

Couneil in that behalf,

3. Ensures that & proper management structure is in place and that the structure functions o
maintain corporate integrity, reputation and responsibility.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

4 Monitors and evaluates the implementation of strategies, policies, and management
criteria and plans of the University.

5. Constantly reviews the viability and financial sustainability of the University, and does

S0 OMICE EVETY Yeal.

6. Ensures that the University complies with all the relevant laws, regulations, governance
practices, accounting and auditing standards.

University’s Council Programme/Almanac

Kibabii University Council has a minimum of four (4) meetings as provided by the State
Corporations Act and capped at a maximum of six (6) for each financial year. The
University has four (4) committees that assist in the smooth running of its affairs. The
committees also have a minimum of four (4) meetings per year. The Council receives
regular updates from each of the committees.




E COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL

To effectively discharge ite mandate, the Council establishes Committees with specific terms of
reference.

The Counci! Committees facilitate decision-making to assist the Council in the execution of its duties,
powers and authority, however delegation of authority to the Commitiees does not In any way
mitigate or dissipate the discharge by the Council of its duties and responsibilities. Council
Committees have been established with formal written terms of reference and observe the same rules
of conduct and procedures as the Council.

In the financial year 2019/2020 the Council approved the following committess;

1. Audit, Risk and Compliance Committeg;

2. Gowvernance and Human Resource Committes;

3. Sirategy, Finance and Development Commities; and
4. Awards and Sealing Commitiee,

Other than the stated Committees, an Ad-hoc Committees may be esiablished as need arises.

The Council membership and meeting attendance during the financial year 2019,/2020 is as indicated
below;

| NAME 1 QUARTER | 2+ 3*0 QUARTER ¢ QUARTER
QUART !
ER
I DATE DATE DATE DATE DaTE DATE | DATE | DATE
| 23nd Hph 23nd 30 Jan, | 1@ Fab. | 7= ol 1oek
| july, Sept, hov, 2020 2020 March | May, | June,
2019 2018 200% 2020 Hzh 2020
Dr. Ernest Mwengi
MNjoroge v v v v v v v |
fvir. Hussein Abd! Farah l
v’ + v v v vl v
Mir, Framcis Asanah :
v v v v v v v v
M. Yincent Nyabiosi
W v v v v v o v
Eng. Mwelka Mungatana
v v v’ v v v v v
bdr, Micheel Obonyo
o v v v v v v v
Dy, Ji o[
e Ul S SR RS (P U P e
Mr. Tom Wambaa
v v v v v W v
Prof. Izanc [ Odeo
2 v v v v v v
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COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL

GOVERNANCE AND HUMAN RESOURCE COMMITTEE

This Commitiee is charged with the responsibility of reviewing and providing advisory opinion on
University Statutes; making recommendations to Council on staff welfare related issues; recommend
to Council improvement in the job grading classification as the Commities may consider appropriate
and provide, oversight in matters of human resource, including salaries, disciplinary matters and
appointments and promotions of Professors, Associate Professors and equivalent Administrative
and Library Grades.

Membership and meeting attendance during the FY2019/2020 is as below listed:

NAME 157 QUARTER 7% QUARTER 30 4T QUARTER
QUARTE
P T R —— —
DATE DATE DATE DAT DATE DATE DATE
23 July, O fagg, | 190 Chet H*Nov, | 17 Jan, 17 April, | 24% Apml
2019 2013 2019 29 2020 H20 2020
Wt | v |v | v | v | v | v
e T v v v v v v
l_'-‘-’nmbua ;
sy v v v Vv v v v
Mr. Michasl | v v v v v v v
LU
Dt Jowoe W. MNgane v v ? o 7 i ¥
Prof. Isaac L Odeo o v v v o ¥ £

AUDIT, RISK AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

This committes’s mandate is to review and provide advisory opinions on Internal and External
Auditors’ reports and make recommendations for the improvement of the internal controls. The
committee also monitors and evaluates management's response to and implementation of
internal control recommendations. This include, internal Audit reports, PIC recommendations,
external audit reports, Risk management, PFFM systems and special assignments. This
committee also provides advice on Quality and Performance Monitoring.

Membership and meeting attendance during the FY2019/2020 is as below listed:

NAME FTQUARTER | 2V 38T 4T QUARTER
QUARTER QUARTER
DATE DATE DATE DATE DATE
137 Sep. 2019 18M Dec. 2012 | 217 March, 12° June, 2020 | 13" June,
2020 2020

fvfr, Vinoent b,

Nyabiosi v v v o W

fir, Huzsefn Abdi

Farah v e d v v

Mr. Michasl |.

Dr. Joyce W, Mgare I, v “, f, v
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E COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL

AWARDS AND SEALING COMMITTEE

The mandate of the commities is to; Receive and consider graduation list for award of Certificates,
Diplomas and conferment of Deprees and make recommendations to the Council; Receive and
Consider the graduation bookle: and make recommendations to the Council; Ensure that the
processing of Certificates and Transcripts is done diligently and with integrity ; Receive and consider
proposals to Council and nominations for the award of Degrees; Recommend to Council award of
Honorary Degrees.; Authorize on behalf of the Council the application of the University seal to
documents.

Membership and meeting attendance for the FY2019/2020 is as listed below:

MAME 14 0 OITARTER 3D qm™
QUARTER QUARTER | QUARTER
DATE DATE DATE DATE DATE
Bfa 15tk 21 31* January., MiA
MNovember, Movember, 2020
2019 209
Mr. Huzsein Abdi Farak - :

i Mir, Francis Ssunah

Mr, Mincent . Myabiosi | -

bir. Michael [, Obonyo -

SESINI SIS
' NENENENES
N ENENENEN

D Joece W MNgune

STRATEGY, FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT COMBMITTEE

The mandate of the committee is to oversee infrastructure development and mainienance, review in
year and annual financial reports and budgets and make recommendations to Council and act on
behalf of council in reviewing the University strategic plan

Membership and meeting atiendance for the FY2019/2020 is as below:

NAME 157 QUARTER 2% QUARTER | 30 4TH
QUARTER QUARTER
| DATE DATE DATE DATE DATE !
118 Igh 12 Okciober, 17 Jenuary, | 10% Aprii,
July, 2019 September, 2019 2020 ! 2020
b 2019
Eng. Mwaks Munzatana & o o o <
| Mr. Francis Asunah
| % v % % v
Mr. Tom M. Wambua Er 3 4 v v v
Br. Michae! ]. Obonyo P o a " o
Dir. Joyce Ngure P4 J = v o
Prof, lsase [ Odesa o " "y o
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COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL

COUNCIL’S KEY ACHIEVEMENTS

Courncil's key achievements in the 2019,/2020 financial year include:
% Approval of Quarterly Reports and Financial Statements

% Approval of Budget Estimates for Finarcial Year 2019,/ 2020

% Performance Contract for the Financial Year

¥ Attainment of 150 9001:2015 Re-Certification

& Approval of Revised Strategic Plan 2016-2020

% Approval of Revised Kibabii University Statutes, 2020

# Approved Annual Procurement Flan 2019/ 2020

& Successful recruitment of the Deputy Vice Chancellor (Administration, Finance and
Developmant}

& Recruited a total of 33 staff, 18 were administrative while 15 were academic staff.
% Successful 4th Graduation Ceremony
¢ Completion of Women Students Flostel Phase I
% Esiablishment of Office of Career Services
% Improvement of University Webemetric ranking in Kenya
# Approval of the following Policies and procedure manuals;
a. Open and Distance Electronic Learning Policy
b. Kibabii University Alumni Association Constitution
c. Innovation Management Policy
d. Resource Mobilization Strategy

e. Whistle Blower Policy

# Procured Medical Insurance and Group Personal Accident Insurance for members of staff and
Council.

% Approved Succession Plan for Top University Management Staff

% Proposed Council Almanac for 2020/ 2021 Financial Year
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E,E_-l MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS |

The 2019/ 2020 financia! year has seen a subdued performance in the achievement of revenue targets.
With the raging COVID-1% pandemic, many institutions including ours have had to reassess risks,
and cope with the deep uncerfainty that has culminated into the current global economic crisis.
Despite this, the University has made progress in changing iis mode of operaiions, enabling it
deliver on its mandate of providing quality teaching, research and exiension. services, by way of
employing technology in carrying out its operations especially in teaching, seminars, training and
meekings.

The 2019/2020 financial year marked the final year of implementation of the University's first fve
year strategic plan. It is time to look back and review our successes and missteps. The following are
some of the highlights of the achievements under each of the six (6} strategic directions in the
University’s 2016-2020 strategic plan;

STRATEGIC -PROMOTE AND MAINTAIN EXCELLENCE N
DIRECTION ONE TEACHING AND LEARNING

R o

« ADVANCEMENT IN RESEARCH, INNOVATION
PARTHMERSHIPS AMD LIMKAGES

sEMHAMCE ADMIMNISTRATIVE, FIMAMCIAL ANMD
HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

STRATEGIC -INVEST IN MARKETING AND PUBLIC
DIRECTION FOUR [Eisssticis

-EXPAND, MAINTAIN AND IMPROVE PHYSICAL
FACILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE

STRATEGIC

DIRECTION FIVE

STRATEGIC | prOVIDE QUALITY HEALTH CARE SERVICES
DIRECTION SIX

His e b e b g ey - U —
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION ONE:

Dromote and Maintain Excellence in

‘eaching and Learning
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NEW ACADEMIC PROGRAMMES

Kibabii University, in its growth (rajectory,
initiated the development of new Programmes in
response to market demancds.

During the reporting year;

& 2 Bachelors, & Masters and 2 PhD
programmes were developed and approved
by senate

» Four {4) were accradited by the C 1551
for University Education (CUE};

# B5c. in Entrepreneurship and Cooperatives
Management

s Master of Education in Kiswahili

o Masters of Business Admindstration &
Management (MBA) with IT

#  Master of Science in Computer Science

= 7 programmes (listed) were forwarded to
the Commission for University Eduvcation

(CUE) for accreditation.
EM MiME OF PROCRAMAE DATE
SUBMITTED
TO CUE

1. Bacheior of 17 Jure
Sclence in 2020
mursing

Z. Master of Sciance in T Juna
Lagistics and Supaly Z020
Chaln Managamant

- Master of Schance in 7% Juna 2020
Digital Security and
Forenscs

e Wlaster of Aris in Kiswahili | 17 June 2020

- Masters of Sclence in 18 February
Camputsr Science 2018

&, PhO in 170 June
Klswahili 2020

T PhD In Businass, 170 June
Adminlstration 2020

The University is in the process of launching
the accredited programmes and continues to
develop more Programmes and short courses.
Additiomally,  Faculties/Schools  initiated
processing of a total of twenty-three [23)
programmes for Senate approval.
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E/M  FACULTY/ECHOOL WO OF NEW

PROGRAMBME(S)
1 Faculty of a8
2 Education &nd
Social Sclances
2. Faculty of Science 7
5, Echool of Business 4
and Ecomomics
& School of &
Computing and
Informatics
EMBRACING TVET EDUCATION AS A
PILLAR TO DEVELOFMENT

Realizing the central role of Technical and
Vocational Education and Training in
Kenya's Development Agenda, Kibabii
University embarked on a journey towards
accreditation by Technical and Vocational
Education and Training Authority (TVETA)
in order to expand opportunities to the
many high school graduates who chose to
pursue TVEL. Towards fthis end, The
Directorate of Technical and Vocational
Education and Training (TVET)} in
conjunction with the Faculties and Schools
acquired 35 TVET programs from
Curriculum Development Assessment and
Certification Council (CDACC) ready for
launching upon completion of the
accreditation process.

The University is in the final stages of
meeting all requirements for accreditation,
having trained trainers, subjected itself to
external inspection by the Public Health
Department, and completed requisite
forms. Omnce accredited KIBU will launch
the programs that are ready per
School/Faculty, broken-down as follows:
School of Business and Economics (SOBE) -
17 programmes, School of Computing and
Informatics (SCAL) - 13 programmas,
Faculiy of Education and Social Sciences
(FESS) - 4 programmmes and Faculty of
Science (F5) - 1 programme.
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION ONE:

TURNING TO TECHNOLOGY FOR Security Management Systems.

TEACHING AND LEARNING THROUGH

ODEL The University continued to build capacity of

staff through training in order to enable them
continue teaching through the online platforms.
Deans of Schools and Facultes and
Chairpersons of academic departments were
trained on Basic Skills of Managing Online
Teaching and Learning, The training was aimed
at equipping them with skills on how they can
enable students to interact with content in a
self-directed manner through Moodle, which is
a learning management system of choice at
Kibabii University. The same was later offered
to all members of academic staff in the
University.

Secondly, staff were trained on how to conduct
virtual meetings using various platforms. As a
result, University Management (UMB), Senate,
Deans’ Committee and other organs of the

While it has been clear for a long time now that
technology is increasingly gaining prominence
in education as is the case in other sectors, the
outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic has awocken
even those who were slow in taking that line of
thinking. Kibabii University already had a
Directorate of Open, Distance and e-Learning
and a robust Directorate of ICT working on
providing support in ensuring that KIBU
programmes take maximum advantage of
emerging technclogies in teaching and learning.
The Directorate of ICT continued to provide
services by ensuring the required infrastructure
is available and functional during the year
under review in the following broad areas: ERF,
Netwaork, User Support, Website, Maintenance

and Systems administration. MNotable University have continued discharging their
achievements include the following: functions.
i Successful launch of the CCTV system, oo pNROLMENT

which has enhanced the security of
equipment and people, and led to
improved invigilation of examinations
with very few irregularities reported.

ii. Omne hundred and two (102) members of
staff created their research profiles on

Kibabii University has witmessed a steady
growth in new student numbers over the years.
The 2019-2020 Academic Year saw an increase
in first year student numbers from 973 in
2018/2019 to 1201 in 2019/2020 as shown in the

Google Scholar and fifty-seven (57) on following tabulation,
ORCID.
i, Eucfi:iteﬂmba Ef;trahun for sixteen (16) g1, dorgraduate Students’ Statistics
we c : Undergraduate student numbers; a comparison

iv. Improved webometric ranking locally
from position 19 to 15 and globally from
position 9060 to position 8036.

v, Launched ISO 27001:2013 Information

of 2018 /2019 and 2019/2020 Academic Years

2[“!;301! Zﬂﬂjiﬂiﬂ
Total | Gssp ol G ol o
_gsse S5P PESP Totad | AL gro
i ;] iF il F
i 0 i O ENCEEND s | i | som
T 0 I
458 H:=ri ﬁii 'E_._EE__E;_E]_ ..Ei_l_lﬂ__%
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2019/2020 ACADEMIC YEAR STUDENT

ENROLMENT BY LEVELS

LEVEL 201%,/2020 =
EMROLMENT

FHED, MASTERS ANG &&2 g.yeu

POST-GRADUATE

DIFLOMA

UMDERCGRADUATES G150 81.40%

DIPLOMA STUDENTS BaE £, 75%

CERTIFICATE B 0.58%

ETUDENTS

GRAND TOTAL 58S 150

Studants' Enrolment 2009/ 2020
Academic Year

.25y 0-58% 8.76x

aFPHD, MABTERS AMD
POST-CRADIDATES
(UNDERGRADUATES

DIPLOMA STUDENTS

CERTIFICATE STUCENTS

INTERNATIONALIZATION OF HIGHER
EDUCATION

internationaiization has emerged as an
nporitant aspect of higher educetion as it
gives studenis an opportunity to expand their
worldview by interacking across borders. As a
result, education plays a big role in developing
a multicultural global citizen. As a first step
towards this goal, in 2019-2020, KIBU received
six (6) international students in the School of
Graduate Studies. Four (4) students were
admitted  for  Master of  Business
Administration (MBA) and two (2) admitied
for Master of Science n  Information
Techmology (MSc. IT). This resulted from a
competitive process in which the Schools of
Computing and Informatics (SCAT) and the
School of Business and Economics (SOBE)
submitied applications to a call 0 universities
to host students frem Member States of the
East African Community in identified
Programimes.

EIEAB UNTERSITY |

The program is a collaboration between the
Inter University Council for East Africa
(IUCEA) and the German Development Bank
(KFW). The University expects to receive
students in the second batch under the
program in the two (2) programmes as it
awaits a response from the IUCEA on
additional applications that were submitted in
respect to other programmes including: M5c in
Pure Mathematics; MBA (HR); MSc in
Computer Science; MBA with [T; MSc in
Physics; and MSc in Applied Mathematics.

GRADUATION

On 22nd November 2019, Kibabii University
held the Fourth (4th) Congregation for the
Conferment of De and Award of
Diplomas and Certificates. The University had
one thousand eight hundred and sixty three
(1,863) students graduating, representing a
modest growth from one thousand seven
hundred and four (1704) in its Third (3rd)
Congregation in 2018, The breakdown was as
follows: thirty cne (31) Certificates accounting
representing 166 %, two hundred and
seventeen (217) Diplomas accounting for 11.65
%, one thousand five hundred and seventy
four (1574) Bachelor's degrees accounting for
8449 %, thirty (30) Masters’ degrees
accounting for 161 % and ten (10) PhDs
accounting for (.54 %,

Suwrnrnary of the 2018
Craduates

15 BSOBE
mSCAl
Fs
mFESS
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TREND OF KIBU CRADUATES FROM
THE YEAR 2076 TO 2019

=00

STUDENT WELFARE SERVICES

In executing its mission, the University
strengthened the students’ welfare support
system by appeointing more wardens, peer
counseliors, chaplaincy and operationalizing
the office of career services, among other
activities.

MENTORSHIP ACTIVITIES

Kibabii University places a lot of premium on
mentorship of its students and prospective
students as a way of impacting the nearby
community and society at large.

School Mentorship Activities
Thirty-eight (38) schools visited the University

in the year under review for the programme.
As a result fifty (50) students joined the
University in the Academic Year 2019/2020.
The wvisiting schools were from Bungoma,
Busia, Trans Nzoia, Nandi, Nakuru, Vihiga,
Kakamega and Kisumu Counties. This helps to
market and position the University as a
national institution that endeavours to offer

knowledge and skills for  national
development.

hMentorship ouireaches

The University conducted mentorship

outreach visits to schools comprising staff and
students, Eighty (80) schools were visited in
the year under review, among them was 5t.
Brigids Kiminini girls which secured 16th
position country wide in K.C5.E. with over 20
students scoring grade A and A-(Minus).

KA UNBERSITY |

Further proof of the impact that this
programme is having is given in the [etter of
appreciation received from Kapsabet High
scheol for recefving academic mentorship since
2015.

*...0t5 @ matter of fct, our partnership with Kibakit
University lins enabled our school set on an upran:
trajectory and thus realizing sterling results from
2015 io date. We were Hien o newly established
national schoof iocated m the rural county of Namndi
buit at the moment, we are e most preferred boy
schoal nationaily. Going by the 2019 schoal
selection medin swroey, 30,000 boys preferred
foining our school yet our capacity s hardly 400
students. Truly specking, we are grently mdebied
to you our good and institute mentoring mstibon
tirough Dr. Wifisla Robert, [n this year 2020, our
candidates are really psyched up after sharing with
the on the subject; power of positive nond n
driving suceess agends eariy in the year. Ve do
believe they will surmount all the setbacks caused
by thee Copid-13 pandemic.”

Abeve: Mentership session ai Kapsshet Boys
High Schoaf
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Careers and Culivral Weak

This year's Careers and cultural week's event
with the theme “Embracing Cultural Diversity
and Inmovations for Global Prosperity” took
place from 12th to 15th February, 2020,

Students from diverse backgrounds displayed
opulence and rich cultural dances clustered
into Kenyan Counties with similar practices.
The University welcomed the first group of
international students who were treated to the
‘hakuna matata’ Kenyan culiure.

Other activities that took place during the fete
inclzded: games and sports, cultural songs and
dances, traditonal foods and taient search.
Studenits were zlso entertained with various
cutdoor competitions.

There were eniries in various categories e.g.
Rap, dancing, spoken word, poetry, singing
and eating competition.
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There was 2 beauty pageant Competition
which aimed at selecting Mr. and Miss Xibabii,
Mz, Flex and Miss Jumbo.

The event was partly sponsored by Soft drinks
manufacturer Coca Cola, Super Loaf, Family
Bank, Kwenji Water and Safaricom Limited

GAMES AND SPORTS

Our students participated in various sporting
activities during the year in review; a highlight
of the major successes include;

« KUSA Western Games 2019/2020:
Soccer mer: crowned KUSA Western Soccer

* League champicns of 2019/2020.

HomaBay open Taskwondo Championship:
First Position for both Men and
Women Categories.

The University also successfully hosted the
Open Friendly Tournament for build-up
purposes with the Kenya Taekwondo Talent
Acadery on 16th March 2020.

Kibabii University stadents shine in the
international arenz

The University during the year in review
celebrated the victory of two of her students; 1)
Faith Ogallo a third year Social Work student,
who made the University and Kenya proud at
the Olympic qualifiers in Rabat, Morocce. The
12th all African Games silver medalist and
Dubai G2 bronze medalist eammed Kenya
Taekwondo a slot at the Olympics in Tokyo
Japan and will represent Kenya in the
middle /heavyweight category at the games
and 2} Benson Moghon who emerged winner
at the KUSA Cross Country race held at
Egerton University. Mr. Mosghon, who is also
the all African University Games Silver
medalist, was to proceed o bMorocco in March,
2020 for the 1th World University cross
country games. The games were postponed
due to COVID-19,

The two were named KIBU's sports
ambassadors and will be branded as the
University’'s sports heroes.
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STUDENTS® LEADERS ELECTIONS

The Students successtully elected their leaders on
13th March, 2020, The elections for the Electoral
College Nominees and Student Council were
held on the same day. The swearing in of the
newly elected leaders and handing over was
done on 19th March, 2020,

«Appointment of a committee to
establish University online
Counselling services to offer
psycho-social support amidst the
COVID-18 pandemic challenges
and beyond.

JWirtua! mestings succeassiully held
with peer counsellors with the aim
of assessing the psychosocial well-
being of students while at home.

sSuccessfui training of student Pesr
Counzeilors who serve as the link
betwaen the students’ body and
counseiling section and mokbilize
students to attend various
behaviour change foerums in the
University

«Successful hosting of gender talks
in collaboration with srudent
Accommodation

e 4




STRATEGIC DIRECTION

TWO

ADVANCEMENT IN RESEARCH,
INNOVATION PARTNERSHIPS AND'
LINKAGES-
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION TWO:

Kibabii University’s, in its Strategic Flan 2016 - 2020, seeks to advance in Research and Innovation
through strategic Partnerships for the benefit of society. This strategic direction is anchored in the
University’s vision and demonstrates the importance placed on research and innovation activities
in the University. Indeed, one of the major functions of the University is to "participate in the
research, transmission and preservation and enhancement of knowledge and to stimulate the
intellect participation of students in the economic, social, cultural, scientific and technological

development of Kenya”.
Status of Research and Innovation at the for the year 2019/2020

Research

KIBU endeavours to strengthen research in the University as one of its Strategic Objectives. The
University emphasizes multi-disciplinary and multi-institutional collaborative research by
engaging diverse professionals/ researchers from other institutions locally and internationally in a
number of research projects. in 2019/2020, & total of six research projects worth Ksh. 190 Million
were on-going. This included Ksh. 9 Million worth of student scholarships.

On-going Donor Funded Research Projects

Through strategic partnerships, the following research projects were initiated during the
2019/ 2020 financial year:

Pl Project Title Donor Agency
Prof. Frankiin Kibabii Urdiversity Information Eﬁ;mxurdcaliun and NRF-Kenya
Wabwaba Technology Hub (KICTH) Infrastructere Project
Dr. Patrick O. DIES Management of Internationalization {Mol) DAAD
Owoche Project
Mr. Kennedy S Transforming Energy Access - Learning Fartnership  DfiDf Carbon
Munyole (TEA-LP) Froject Trust
Prof. Benedict M. African Higher Education Leadership in Advancing  EU
Mutua Inclusive Innovation for Development (AHEAD)

Project
Prof. Julius K. Matyo  DIES Naticnal Multiplication Trainings Project DAAD

Dr. Paul O, Ong'anyi  DIES/CREST Training Course for Supervisors of DAAD
Doctoral Candidates at African Universities

Dr. Joshua O. Abuya  DIES/CREST Training Course for Supervisors of DAAD
Dectoral Candidates at African Universities

Mr. Stephen O. Spatail Distribution, Capacity and Cooperation NEF - Kenya
Nyaare among Disaster Risk Management Actors in Kenya

Froject
D, Alice Nambiro Technology Enabled Learning Commonwealth
Wechuli of Learning
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION TWO
University Research Fund

Kibabii University invests in its staff by establishing University Research Fund (URF) Programme.
The fund competitively offers seed research grants to budding researchers for purposes of capacity
building as they prepare to manage major research projects. The following URF funded research
projects were funded during the FY2015/2020.

Undversity funded Research Projects

Pl Projeci Title
Dr, Tom G. Ekisa Innovative Agribusiness Approach to Cassava (Manihot esculenta) and
Miilet (Eleusine spp ) Value Chain Enhancement Profect

—

Dr. Munir 4. Urndversal Health Care Needs Assessment for the Aging Population in
Muganda Kanduyi Sub-County, Kenya Project

Dr. Ben W. Socio-Economic and Cultural Correlates of Social Vices among Students
Nyongesa of Kibabii University and their Impact in the Neighbourhood Project

Research Proposals Developed and Submitted for Donor Funding

In 2019/2020, a totzl of twenty three (23) multi-disciplinary research proposals were developed
and submitted for local and internationa! donor funding, representing a 48% increase from those
developed in the previous year.

Research Proposals Developed and Submitied for International Donor Funding

5Mo. Title of Research Proposal Donor Araoumt
. o Agency .
L Improving the Post-Graduate Supervision CODESRIA U5 50,330

Capacity and Mentorship of Faculty for Quality
Cratprats and Timely Comnpletion Rates in the
Humanities and Sorial Sciences

2 Enhancing rapid COVID-19 testing as an efficient ELRHA, UK £1,348,726
toal for circumventing the exponential
transmiszion and spread in LREB, Kenya

3. Accounting Implication of COVID-190n IFRS %  JAAER/KFM US 25,000
Imnplementa fion on Kenya Financial Services G
Sector
4 Enhancing Best Practices on Professionalization of CODESRIA  $35,000
Distance and Online Doctoral Supervision in HEIs
in Africa
5. Technology Enabled Learning (TEL) COL, Canada- CAD 11,568
&. Academic Mobility for Susiainable Information Africa Undon € 1,385,128
and Communication Technology Human Capital {AU) and
Development (AMSTHD) European
Usion (EU)
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION TWO:

7. URBAN CLIMATE CHANGE LABS: EU EURC
Strengthening HEI'S Urban Climate Action
Capacities In Africa & Latin America Through Co-
Creation Living-Labs For Social And Ecological
Problem-Colving

B, Project-based Learning for Empowering EU € 975,335
Graduates in Sustzinable Digital Innovation and

Start-up Creaton- (ProDigi)
9 Project-based learning for empowering graduates EU € 975,335
in sustainable digital innovation and start-up

creation - FroDigi

9. Academic Mobility for Sustainable Information  EU €1,585,128
and Communication Technology Human Capital
Development.
9. Solar PV Workforce Skills Centre SlovakAid €10,090
12. Enhancing the Rolz of information TUCEA/AFH Open

Comeunicacon Technology-Based Interventions  RC
in Promoting Mental Wellbeing ameng Older

People in Sast Afvica
Photo: Kibabii University Team participating in AHEAD
Project Transnational Capacity Building Workshop and
Project Management meeting at Kyambogo University,
Kampala-Uganda in November, 2019

KIBSBI UMIVERSITY | G0



STRATEGIC DIRECTION TWQ

Research Proposals Developed and Submitied for Funding Locally

SN Tiile of Research Proposal Donor Armounk
Agency {in KShs.
Miliions)

1 Evaluation of Indigenous herbal products for the NEF 2001

management of COVID 15 pandemic in Kenya

2.  Establishment of a centre for Analysis of Anti-Cancer NRF 30h1
African Medicinal Plants (CAAMP)

3. Enhancing rapid COVID 15 Testing by a consortium of NREF 20
University personnel as an Efficient Tool for
Circumventing Exponential Transrmission and spread of
the Disease in the Lake Region Economic Bloc Rural
Population

4.  Leverage Digital Financial Infrastructure in containing MNEF 20M
COVID 1% pandemic and Strengthening FEconomic
Recovery among Counties Bordering Lake Victoria
Kenya

5. Effect of COVID 19 in the livelihoods of the Mt F 2011
Commurdties in the Lake Victoria Region of Kenya

6.  Psycho-Social Approach to Risk Communication and NERF 20M
Community Engagements in Kenya's COVID-1%
Response '

7.  Assessing Environmental Risk factors and Cancer NRF 30hd
hotspots mapping in Meru and Bungoma Counties;
Implémentation research modsl for comprehensive
Cancer Surveiilance in Kenya

8.  Effectiveness of School based interventions on uptake of ~ NRF 20M
Human Papilloma Virus (HFV} vaccine among girls
aged 10 years for cervical cancer prevention in Kenyza. A
cluster randomised conirol trial

9.  Development of an Early Warning Frotocol for the MNEF 20M
Control of Desert Locusts [nvasion in Kenya

10. Locust, Schistocerca Gregariz, Mitigation Strategies for NEF 20M
Managing Outbrezks io Reduce the Threat to Food

"::Efzuﬁt_-,r

11.  Modelling a Multi-Agent Patient Management Robot NEF 201
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION TWO:

Participation in Research Fora

KIBU supports its stzff and students iraining and exposure by sponsoring them to attend jocal and
international research, inmovation and related fora to share ideas and best practices, and
disseminate research outputs. During the year in review, the University facilitated fifteen (15) staff
and three (3) students to attend such fora.

Research Events Attended in 2019/2020 FY

Attendesls Event Description Venue and Date
Prof. Iseac Ipara Trer-Liniversity Counci] of East Africa Induction Entebbe, Uganda
Waorkshop for Scholarships oh_ 2020

Drr. Kadian W Wanyama
Dr. Patrick O. Owoche

Mr. Erick W. Wamaltwa CHAWAKAMA National Convention Embu University
March &t - 7 2020
Mr. Amos Nyongess GACOPA International Delegates and Scientific Figali Rwanda
Conference
March 5% .7 2020
Prof. Benedict b. Mutua 1% General Assembly on Austria-Africa-UnilNet Vienna, Austria
and kick off meeting for African and Austrian February 28 - March
Universities and Research Institutions 2 2020
Dr. Henry 5. Mandalenge VLD, Mother Language Conference Masinde Muliro
! : Urnwersity
ivir. Makarios W, VWanjala
' February 9% - 21* 2020
Prof. Julius K. Malyo Connectivity Beyond Classroom: Employability University of Pune and
Skills for Global Teacher Education Infernational H.G.M. Azan College of
Conference Education in India
February 6% - T 2020,
Dr. Fred W, Simiyn CHAKAMA 2019 International Conference Maesai Mare University
MNovember B - 9 2019
Dr. Laura N, Mamali 2rd Annual Forensic Victimelogy and Vichm University of Nairobi
Suppart Kenya October 227 - 24% 2019

Dr. Leunita M. Maldls
ivir. Stanslaus |. Waswe fienniai Research and Innovation Conference Kenyatta Urdversity

Detaber 227 - 251 2019

American Heart Association & Rescue Services Nairobi
Conference
October 16% o 18 2019
Ms. Lucy N. Nemusonge International Confersnce Makerere University,
Uganda
Cctober 14™ - 16™ 2019
Three students Inter Universities Investigative Journalism Mombasa, Nairobi and
Competition for Journalism Students Kisumu
B wieeks in October-
November, 2019
Mrs. Domitila M. £ibilike nternational Conference Urdversity of Plymouth,
UE

July 17 19% 2019
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION TWO

Research Events Organized

Title of Event Event Description Facilitetor and Date
Training Workehop Mavigaion of Research Funding Research BeelineLid
P = L L o =) T [ e
Opportunities  and Research Grant e 118 550
Management AR i
Training Workshop Enhancing Change Project Management  MMT Project
for Ecomomic Sustainability in Higher March 31 - gh 3020
Education Institutions in Kenya BIREIIaA =

Training Workshop Research Funding Opporturcdes and Research Beeline Lid
N
i lararary 23 200
Training Workshop Research Output Packaging for Beiter TCC-Africa
Webometric Rankir
PR i September 12% 2019

PHOTO: The muitidisciplinary research team
between Kibabii University and Moi University
attended the Transforming Energy Access -
Learning Partnership (TEA-LP) Project
workshop in Nairobiin November, 2019. The
workshop was attended by over 500 delegates
from more than 50 countries.
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION TWO:

INNOVATION

The future of any society will depend on its
level of invesiments in transformative
innovations now. Kibabii  University
endeavors to unlock this potential by
investing heavily in the establishment of
innovation hubs. In its Strategic Plan 2016-
2020, promotion and preservation of
innovation is one of its strategic objectives. In
promoting inmovation, the University has
furnished the recently established Innovation
Hub with state of the art equipment funded
by the AHEAD Project at a cost of Kshs. 1.7m.
The University is also in the process of
completing the NRF funded Kibabii
University Information Communication and
Technology Hub (KICTH) at a cost of KShs.
67m. KICTH will consist of the following state
of the art laboratories in furtherance of
research and innovation in the University:

1. Forensics

2. E-learning and video conferencing

3. Mobile computing, and

4. Incubation cenire

The Hubs are accessible to a large number of
staff, students and other external stakeholders
and with the sirong mentorship programme.
They help nuriure and mature innovative

business ideas  for purpose of
commmercialization. The two hubs have
positioned Kibabii University as a Centre of
Excellence in ICT, Research and Innovation in
the region.

The University's robotics project has been the
Centre of atiraction in both local and regional
shows and exhibitions. In the 2019/2020 FY,
the University supported a team of staff and
students to a tune of Kshs. 526,000 to prepare
robots and participate in the ROBOKEN
competiion organized by the National
Commission for Science, Technology and
Innovation (NACOSTI).

To institutionalize a culture of innovation and
spur student and staff interest in innovation,
Kibabii University started rolling out annual
Inmovation  Challenge. The 2019/2020
Inaugural Challenge was sponsored by the
European Union Funded AHEAD Project and
focused on the “Big 4 Agenda”, and drew a lot
of interest from diverse Staff and Student
participants

In an effort to preserve innovation, in the year
2019/2020, the University registered two (2)
trademarks, two (2) copyrights and one (1)
patent.

STATUS OF KIBU IP ASSETS REGISTRATION

TITLE OF INNOVATION INVENTO  IP REFNO. IF TYFE STATUS
EMNAMES /REGBOLDY
KIBU (Acronym) Kibabii Th No: 106924 Trademark  Gertificate of Registration of
University  Kenya Industrial Trademark lssued
Property Institute
(KIPI)
Kibabii Undversity Kibabii Th Mo:106523 Trademark  Certificate of Registration of
Official Logo University  Kenya Indusirial Trademark issued
Froperty Institute
(KIPI)
nal Citizens Ivlx. Johm LT-014898 kenya Copyright Certificate of
Android Application Eloto Copyright Registration of a copyright
Board(KECOBO) work issued
The 355 Business Plan Dr.Mugand  LT-014897 Copyright Certificate of
Canvas a Munir Kenya Copyright Registration of a copyright
Board(KECOBO) wark lssued
An Engine thai Appliss Mr.Peter KIPI/PAT/GF/019 Patent Search was successful.
the Principle of Coupled Prichand (a4 Recommended to draft final
Force to Produce specification and apply for
Mechanical Energy patent/ utility model
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION TWO

PUBLICATIONS DURING THE 2019/2020FY

It is in the culiure of the University to engage its scholars n disseminating their
research findings and outputs in high impact peer reviewed journals. In the year
2019/2020, 77 items inciuding University level books and book chapters and peer
reviewed journal articles were published representing 8.5% increase from the
previous reporiing period.

Articles in
peer reviewed
Jjournals

PARTNERSHIPS AND COLLABORATIONS

s MoU with Commonwealth of Learning (COL) to implement a Technology-
Enabled Learning platform at KIBU

¢ Mol with Research Beecline Limited to support access to research funding
platform/ data base) to KIBU researchers

= Mol with Ausiria - Africa UNiNet o facilitate research and raming
a Moll with Rongo University on the African Library Project.
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KIBU considers efficient and prudent financial,
admdristrative and  human  resources
management as key to the realization of the
Strategic ~ Directions.  Good  financial
management ensures maximum application of
resources to  intended areas, thereby
coniributing to the attainment of objectives.
However, good financial management is only
possible where there are good administrative
manageiment practices.

Once performance outputs and performance
standards have been set, the guality assurance
systern should be able to function as a sensor,
comparator and corrector. The University
endeavors to establish and adhere to Quality
Management System.

We share some highlights of strides made by
the Undversity towards achievement of this
objectives during the 2019 /2020FY;

The University undericok the iollowing
activities with the aim of ensuring quality:
¢ | Quality assurance forums for class

representatives, academic and
administrative staff;

* CAudit of marks for gradusting
students;

= [ Online course evaluadon; and
* CReview of quality assurance tools.

In addition, in 2019/2020, the University
accomplished the following:

« OMS External Quality Audit based on
I50 9001:2015 Standard (Re-certification
Audit): Kibabii University underwent a
UMS External Quality Audit based on
IS0 9001:2015 Standard (Re-certification
Audit), successfuily conducted by SGS
Kenya, who  recommended  re-
certification.

Training of Quality Fianagernent System Lead
Auoditors: Two Quality Management System
(QMS]) lead auditors were trained on QMBS

Internal Audits: The University conducted two
(2) internal QMS Audits in February and June,
2020 respectively.

The University signs a performance contract
every year which is aligned to its strategic plan
and the government Agenda. This Contracts are
then cascaded to members of staff for purposes
of implementation. At the end of every financial
year an evaluation is conducted to measure the
University’s performance against agreed
targets. The evaluation for the year 2018/ 2019
was done during the reporting period where
the University scored. Some of the areas where
the Undversity performed very well included
while was noted as an arez for improvement.

Kibabii  University  acknowledges  the
importance of its hurnan resource in achieving
its strategic objectives and ensures that their
welfare is prioritized through capacity building,
provision of a good working environment and
offering competitive remuneration.

Staff establishment met gender ratio and age
representation as illustrated below:

184
204 FEMALE
MALE STAFF
STAFF TOTAL
STAFF

388

53%
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Age of Staff Distribution Age of Staff Distributlon

e A . - o%
AgeCategory(frs) _Mo. af Staff
D-2a a
25-34 74
35-44 1585
45 - 54 122
55 - 64 24
85 AND ABOVE 3
TOTAL 348

Pevaoms Living With Disability

Two (2) staff living with disability (FLWD) were in Employment for the
1:..# period ending 2019/2020 and Kibabit University will continuously

encourage recruitment of FLWD.

Ceeupadonal Safety and Health

The University is registered with Directorate of Occupational Safety and
Hesith, It has since constituted an Ocrupational Safety and Health
Cornmitiee,

= The University supported a staff from the Faculty of Science to attend a Mathematics
summer school in the Undiversity of Durban, South Africa,

» One staff was supported to attend a workshop on Contacts of Minutes and Minutes
writing that was held at Kenya School of Government from 8th to 11th October, 2019.

s The University selected a team of Seven Ressarchers to attend a training workshop
organized by National Research Fund (NEF) on capacity building to enhance Research
skills,

= The University nominated and supported three (3} staff from the School of Computing

and Informatics (SCAI) to attend a virtual IBM Skilis training on cloud application
developer. The iraining was organized and facilitated by IBM in 2020.

» The University supported one member of staff to attend a Dialogue on Innovative Higher
Education Strategies (DIES) online Training Course on Management of
Internationalization. The course is organized by DIES courtesy of Leibniz Universitit
Hannover, the Serman Academic Exchange Service (DAAD), and the German Rectors’
Conference (HEK). Tt is aimed at qualifying managers of international affairs and
linkages at Universities in developing countries to manage the processes and tasks of
internationalization in the area of higher education.
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* The University also conducted training needs analysis that fed to (5) members of staff to
be facilitated to attend Senior Management Courses at Kenya School of Government and
nine (%) members of staff were facilitated to attend short courses.

The Administration and Human Resource Department organized for an induction training
of its newly appointed staff for two days on 10th and 1ith February, 2020 5taff inducton
gives new staff the insight of the institution they are working in and enables them to adjust
for efficient service delivery, The exercise was facilitated by internal members of staff led by
the Vice chancellor, it was conducted for two days covering a wide range of issues that are
quite fundamental to newly appoinited members of staff to familiarize themselves with the
mandate and what Kibabii University stands for.

During 2019/2020 Financial Year, fifty three (53) staff were recruited inic the service of
Kibabii University and fourteen {14) internal staff who had attained required guaiifications
were promoted %o fill staffing gaps as per scheme of service.

Kibabii University has a reward and recognition policy to motivate stafi. it also serves to
build a better employment desi, hold on to good employees and io reduce employee
turnover. The University also has non-financial rewards such as recognition, raining,
development and increased job responsibility. The reward system: also incresses staffs
willingness to work in the University leading to enhanced productivity.

The University has a salary raise reward system that serves to build 2 beiter employment
deal, hold on to good employees and to reduce employee turnover, The University also has
non-financial rewards such as recognition, training, development and increased job
responsibility. The reward systern also increases staffs willingness to work at the University
and enhance their productvity.

Phioto: A section of new staffers
taking the oath of secrecy during

induction avent
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION FOUR

STRATEGIC DIRECTION FOUR: INVEST IN MARKETING AND PUBLIC
RELATIONS
Marketing and Public Relations are important aspecis of the University in promoting its
public image. During the year in review, the University estabiishec e Public Relations
and Marketing Office to coordinate activities aimed at promoting Xloabii University's
image through enhancement of its visibility; and strengthen marketing of the University
and her programmes.
The following are highlights of Public relations and Marketing =ctivities during the
Fy2019/2020;
Participation in Shows and Exhibitions
The University partcipated i the 2019 ASK Bungoma Sateliite Show where, iis
innovations and research owtouts were show cased. The University entered 10 compete in
five (5} classes during the show and won in four, The Universily was alsc honoured to
publish three articles in the show catalogue.
KIBU in colisboration with the Ministry of Trade, Counly Government of Bungoma
jointly sponsored four (4) Kibabii University staff to participate in the 20th East African
Community MSME Trade Falv in Kigali Rwanda. KIBU was the ¢y University from
Kenya st the International Trade Fair. The University used the sppornunity to showcase
their innovatons as well as market the University and its Programmes caring the ten-day
event. The following innovatons were displayed at the exhibiien by University staff:

&} Vegetable Drier Panel

b} Building Construction Robotic

C) Accounting Management Information System; and

d} Schoo: Informanon Management System
KIBU's the vegetabie driar panel innovation selected as one (1) of the best ten {10) unique
mnovatons.
The University was honoured to publish one (1) article; "Desert locusts 'invasion in
Kenya: Sustainable Management Approach” in the Eldoret Natonal Show, ASK Show
Catalogue
The University also participated in the Nation Mediz Group Careers Expo themed
‘Connecting you o your Future” that was held at Jome Keryatia Sporis Ground in
Kisumu. The two-day event attracted 28 Universities and Colleges and was attended by
students from a number of Secondary Schools and Colleges. It alss laid a platform for
Universities to interact with high school graduates.

Launch of a Bi-Monthly Newsletter

To ensure the Untversity activizes, events, research interests and srucent engagemenis
are well caprured and communicated both intemally and externzlly. the Public Relations
Office iaunched a newsletter dubbed “KIBU NEWSWEEK". By the dme of this review,
the editorial team had hit 8 rzleases and cpbeat to do more in the coming firancial year,
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION FIVE:

STRATEGIC DIRECTION FIVE: EXPAND, MAINTAIN AWND IMPROVE
PHYSICAL FACILIVIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE

To ensure excelience in teaching, learning, consuliancy, research and extension
KIBU's has continued to expand, maintain and improve its physical facilities and
infrastructure. Some of the successes recorded in expansicn of physical
infrastructure during the year in review were;

Construciion of a New Hostel

The University through the suppert of the government constructad a new hostel for
female students with a bed capacity of 412, raising the number of Hostels to five,
three for female and two for male students. This has raised the Universities
accommodation capacity from the previcus 1,536 o 1,948 students. In consiructing
this facility, the University ensured that it was accessible by sersons living with
disabilities by providing rooms on the ground floor for easy access, provision of
two special toileis and bathrooms in every hostel, provision of ramps at both
entrances of the hostel and provision of self-contained rooms for persons living
with disabilities.
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION Six®

STRATEGIC DIRECTION SIX: PROVIDE QUALITY HEALTH CARE SERVICES

Health issues have great impact on & nation and her insdtutions such as KIBU in
de-livering her mandate. In consideration of the government's Big Four Agenda,
KIBU has continued o sirategically address existing and emerging health frends
and health relai-ed issues that may directly or indirectly affect productivity of her
staff and students. During the year in review the University is happy to report the
following two key achievements;

PROCUREMENT OF MODERN AMBULANCE

The University procured a modern ambulance to provide emergency services o
staff and students. The ambulance will also serve as an Income Generating Project
to the University as it will be hired out to the community at an affordable cost.

PREVENTION AND CONTROL OF SFREAD OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC WITHIN
THE UNIVERSITY

With the orset of the globa! pandemic; COVID-15, The University established a
University Covid-19 Response Committee, which spearhieaded responses toward
containment of the disease. Through this commiiftes staffs were provided with
KING5 facial masks and alcoho! based hand sanitizers. Hand-wash basins were aiso
installed ai the University (main gate) and thermo gun temperatilre screening for
covid-19 introduced at the main gate by health workers and security guards.
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FINANCIAL PERFOMANCE

The global COVID-1% pandernic hze nad a negative
impact on the economy globally. Kidabii Undversity
was not spared as revenue targeis for the fourth
quarter were not met. The University also had o
suspend all planned capitel deveiooment activities
due to a downward revision of the University's
Capital development budget

The University had o reassess its risks and reviae its
budpets to allow for mitigetion measiires against the
risks associated with the COVID-19 diseaze. To
ensure oontinuity of Uprversity business, the
University had o incur sdditional sxpenses which
had not been envisioned at the time of budgeting
including; raining of faculty end staff as well as
pulting in place infrastructure to enable the uze of
internet for meetings, teaching and learning.

Resnlts

Luring the vear in review, the University recorded &
surplus of Kshs. 2.9 million a 64% drop from Kshs.
8.02 million reported last year. This is attributed 1o
the growing needs against an zimost stagnant
revenue base, the dth guarter revenue targets were
also not met as the Uraversity head o suspenda its
actvities in & bid 10 contain the spread of the
COVID-19 disegse

Below is the University finencial performance trend
over the [ast 5 yvears;

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
TRENDS
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Total IncomeBources of Income

Cur total income increased by 1% to
Kshs. 1270 tillior up from Kshs. 1.250
billion reported last year. This
comprised of 48% and 10% from
government capitsion for recurrent
and capital develcpment respectively.
£% from granis and donations and 36%
from A.LA. Tuition fees contributed the
biggast percantage (60%) of the ALA
income.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Developmeni Grants

During the FY201%/2030, the Uroversity had a
apital development sllecation of Kehs. 300,000,000
from the exchequer. Of this allocation, Kshs.
(30,424,759 had been received as at the end of
ruarter 3. The University did nat receive the bajance
of Kshs. 169,575,241 as sxpected dus o revisions
made by the gover-mer: during Suoplementary I
where capital development was Saited by the
Sovernment to ailow channelling of funds towards
the fight against the glotal pandemi; the Covid-1%
lispase.

et Worth

Cnaer et worth greww from Kshs, Da72 Bibion W
$shs. 2 5 FBillion iv the year undar review this
represents a 5.4 % growt.

WU
P Crfiwth i NMefWorth
R -

X

Compliance with Stastutory Requirernents

n the yeer under review, Kibabii University
complied with ali the staratory obligations.
Contingent Liabilitizs

Cring the FY2015, 2020, the University had four on

gmngm:

a) Bungoma NC Petiion ne 15 of 2016, Dewvid
Murambi and two (2) others V5 the Country
Government of Fungoma and Kitabii Undversity
for trespass % property. The tctl exposure to
the University is Ksh. 2.5 Million. The University
secks “an out of court settlement through
mediation and will continues to pursue inis
avenue for amiceble resoludon.
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b) Bungoma Employment and Labour
Relations Court Cause No. 61 of
2018 Walubengo Singore Mulire VS
Kibabli University. The lability is
vet 10 be determined.

2} Kisumu Employment and Labour
Relations Court Cause No. 61 of
2018 Prof Shem O. Aywa V5 the
Chairman of Council, the
Chencellor Kibabii University and
Public Service Commission. The
liability has not been determined.

d) Bungoma CMC MC ELC No 14 of
2020. Beatrice M. Wanjala and
another VS County Comrissioner,
County Commandant and Vice
Charwellor - Kibabii University.
This is an injunction restraining the
respondents  from  interfering
trespassing, developing,
constructing, or in any other way
interfering with the Plaintiff's L.R.
Mo East Bukusu/North
Kanduyi/ 888

Key Projects and Investment
Decisions  the  University is
Flanning/Implementing

a) Women Students Haostel

(Completed)

Tne project will increase access to
University education in line with the
sustainable development goal on
education. The project was financed by
the Goverrment of Kenya and was
completed and comumissioned during
the 2019,/2020 Financial Year

5 Kibabii University Information
Communication and Technology
Hub (KICTH)

This project, which will consist of state
of the art forenmsics, E-learning and
wideo conferencing, Mobile computing,
and Incubation laboratories was funded

oy the National Research Fund.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Hub will be accessible o a large
number of stff students snd obther

external stakeholders and will help auroure
and mature inrovative buesiness idess for

purpose of commercialization. The hubs
will position Kibabii University as a Centre
of Excellence in ICT, Rassarch and
Inmovation in the region. The project was
at 30% completion as at the close of the

reporting period.

¢) CCYV Surveillance

This Project will enhance securitv and aid
in invigilation in order to ensure continued
integrity of University Examinzdons. The
project, which was funded from A.LA was
completed and commissioned during the
reporting period.

Planned Projects

a) Schooi of Nursing

The aim of the project is m promote
research, innovadon and heslticers. This
will contribute to reduction of diseases and
therefore increase productivity in om
society, The project i= intended t© be
financed by the Governmant of Xenya. The
University has submitted the programme
to the Commussion for University
Education (CUE) for Accreditation.

b, Proposed Spocts Fields

This project is aimed at keeping the
students sngaged and will allow them w
channel iheir eanergies In constructive
activities, the sports fields will also be
utilized for learning purposes and as an
income generation Unit for e niversity
it will also posidon the University at a
strategic advantage over other Universities
within the region thersfore atmacling
students. The project is planned for
impiementmation in the FY2020/2021 and
will be financed by the Government of
Kenya.
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g) Proposed Ulwe- biodern Stadent
Centre

Establishment of ¢ Business aad Stadents
Centre is one of e :iratégiss that have
been identified globally as a means of
manaping studenis witin institutions of
highes leamming, Thris project will provide
as avenue for engazing the growing
aumber..af  swdeas. and  safely
maintzming thern wicin the University.
1t offe: a compreiensive mciliny to house
studens recreati aa. and socalization
needs, it will prov Je 2 sonesphere fora
common life snd culdvated sodal
program for the varied population of the
studerss, faculty and Alunwni of the
Univessity it will be a focus of University
comum unity life where scadernte and staff
would have an ample opportanity o
interact and also incubate ideas that
would g0 a lovg wav in enhancing
innovadons, The procect is planned for
implementation in  the 2020/202:
Financial Year ard wili be rmanced by
the Government o Keoye

d) Purchage of Labozatory Equiprment

In pursuit of its vision of being a globai
and dymamic University of excellence in
Science, Technology and  Innovation,
Kibabi: University gizcs to equip and
modernize its laboritores as a way of
workirg towards the promotion and
maintenance of sxcellence o teaching
and leaming. The University is in the
process of procuting egupment for
aleven (11} laboremries =t a cost of Ksh.
50 million in e 2020/2021 fnancial
Year, This will go 2 long way in
improving  the  soadents leaming
expericnce, murther ephancing the quality
of graduates prodiuced for the local and
international labour nasket The project
will be financea oy e Govemment of
Kenye.



FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Major Bisks Facing the University

The University financial assets are trade
receivables and cash and short term deposits
which arise directly from its operatons. The
University has fnancizl Habiliies comprising
trade and other payables.
The University has exposure to the following
risks:

i. Market risks

ii. Liquidity risks

iii. Credit risks
The Council has overail responsibility for the

establishment and oversight of the
University's risk management framework.

The University's risk management policies
are established to identify and analyse the
riske faced by the University, to set
appropriate risk imits and controls, and to
moritor risks and adherence to Iimits. Risk
management and systems are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
economic conditions and the organization's
activities. The Vice Chancellor oversees how
management mondtors compliance with the
University's risk mansgement policies and
procedures and reviews the adequacy of the
risk management framework in relaton to
the risks faced by the University.

Market risks
Inferest rate risk

The Umniversity has no inierest bearing
borrowings or investments and is financed
by cash generaied from its operations. This
risk was therefore not applicable in the
quarter under review,

Foreign currency risk

The  University  undertakes certain
transactions denominated in  foreign
currencies, mainly the US Dollar. This results
in exposures to exchange rate fluctuations.
The balances impacted in this regard are the
balance due to peayments in foreign
CUrrenclas.
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Exchange rate exposures are managed within

approved policy parameters ulilizing
matching of assets and liabilities.
Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the University
will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fail due. The University's
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure,
as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient Hquidity to meet its liabilities when
due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable
Iosses or risking damage to the University's
reputation. Typically, the University ensures
that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet
cted tional expenses for a period of
;;Péa}rs, mu@ the servicing of financial
obligations. This excludes the potential
impact of extreme circumstances that cannot
reasonably be predicted, such as natural
disasters and politicai violence. All liquidity
policies and procedures are subject to review
and approval by the Council. All capital
investments are funded by the Government.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the
University if a customer or counter party to a
financial instrumeni fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally
from the organization's receivables from
customers. The University receives fees from
students which minimizes the credit risk
exposure. The University has a student's fees
payment policy which defines how and
when fees are supposed to be paid hence
minimizes credit risk.
All the University's receivables are fully
performing and are expected to be repaid.
Bank balance includes cash in hand and

deposits held with banks. Bank balances are
not restricted to any use by the client.

Material Asrears ia Statutory/Financial
Obligations

The Undversity did not have any material
arrears in statutory/financial obligations as
at the end of the year under review.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

STATEMENT/SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

KIBU exists to iransform lives. This is our purpose; the driving force behind everything we do.
It's what guides us to deliver our strategy, which is founded on our six strategic directions. In
our operations we recognize the need of putting the customer,/Citizen first, delivering relevant
goods and services, and improving operational excellence. Below is a brief highlight of our
achievements:

Sustainability strategy and profile

From the year 2016, the education sector reforms that focused on improvement of the quality of
Education resulted in a reduction in number of students qualifying for University Education in
Kenya. This affected the Higher Eclucation sectors across the country as most of the Universities
were unable to absorb students to fill their declared capacity. Kibabil University was equally
affected with student numbers decreasing significantly and affecting grossly the Privately
Sponsored Student Programme. This meant that this funding stream was grossly affected. The
Universities found themselves competing for the same students with other Local Public and
Private Universities as well as International Universities.

To ensure sustainability, KIBU has continued to review existing programimes and develop new
market driven programmes that will be atiractive to students. The University has also invested
in its human rescurce to ensure improved quality of services offered to students and other
stakeholders. To enhance student catchment, the University continues to diversify the courses on
offer by introducing Technical and Vocational (TVET) courses, and offering online courses
which are also aimed at attracting infernational students.

Environmental Performance

KIBU continuss fo play a significant role in environmental conservation and sustainability.
During the year in review, the University participated in the 2020 National Tree Planting
Campaign themed “Fanda miti, boresha maisha” at Kaberua Forest Station, Kibuk River in
Bungoma County.

Kibabii University led by Vice Chancellor, and members of Kaberua community participated in
the tree planting exercise where over 5,000 tree seedlings were planted in Mt. Elgon - a key water
catchment tower in the region.

Additionally, the University continues to sustain its greening initiatives by maintaining over
70% green cover by planting and maintenance of flora in all strategic locations in the University.

Market place practices

Kibabii University endeavours to maintain the highest standards of ethics and instils a culture of
integrity among the members of staff. KIBU adheres to the provisions of the Constitution of
Kenya 2010 and carries all its activities and dealings in a transparent manner. This has fostered
good supplier and other stake holder relations

The University is also IS0 9001:2015 certified and prides itself in provision of quality services to
its stakeholders. Stake holder feedback is used for continuous improvement. To this end, KIBU's
products and services are vetted and subjected to externalization to ensure that our students and
other customers receive quality services and get value for money.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

STATEMENT/SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

Suppller relations schisvaments during the FY2013/2020:

'. e | | ‘

e

| Procurement | i
|  awarded to Youth ey Reduction in
—  Women and L- m*agsaﬂ with'n Supplier
- Persons Living | P Ehdaws Corplaints
|

with Dizabilities

g T B P N Oy~

Community Engagements

Corporate Socia! Responsibility TSR

* MNational Education Week.

Distributed sanitary towels to giris sitiing XCPE exams in 2015 in Bungoma
County.

* Workshop on Project Managemeat

Trained officers in-charge of project implementation in schools within Bungoma
County

¢ Kibabli Police Paivol Base

Construction of the Kibsbii Police Patrol bese now equipped and Critical
Infrastructurs Protection Unit (CIPU) enhanced

« Beyond Zero Marathon

KIBU support s the Covernment Agenda on Healeh 2nd was represented at the
Marathon atmed at improving Maternal health care

* Community Ouizeach or COVID1S

To help Contain the COVID-19 disease, KIBU sensitized the Community, donated
masks, sanitizers and soap to our students, and poor households in the community
as well as the marke! places

+ Bungoma Agricultaral Show !
KIBU Consirucied a VIP pate at the Bungoma ASK Show ground and |
conducted & Free medical Camp during the Bungoma ASK show

+  African Library Project

Donated Library materials io Weema Childrers home

During the fourth quarter of FY2019,/2020, the University fraternily made persenal and
institutional contributions to the government COVID-1% pandemic kitty, thereby boosting its
fight against the spread of the disease. Additonally, apart from being actively involved in
underiaking research activites on infervention measures, the University also received
approval from the Kenya Bureau of Standards to produce sanitizer and liguid soap.

during FY2019/2020

Corporate Socjal Responsibility Activities

=l
(51]
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REPORT OF THE UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

The University Council submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2020 which show the state of the University's

affairs.

Frincipal activities

The principal activities of the University continue to be provision of higher education,
research and extension services.

Results

The resuiis of the Unjversity for the Year ended june 30, 2020 ave setout on page 77
University Council

The members of the University Council who served during the year are shown on
page i2-16

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the University for the
year ended June 30, 2020 in accordance with Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya

anl the Publie Audit Act 2015

By Order of the Council

VICE CHANCELLOR

FIBASE UNNERSITY |
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STATEMENT OF UNIVERSITY COUNCIL'S RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 81 of the Public Finance Managament Act, 2012, section 14 of the State Corporations Act,
and section 47 of the University's Act. 2012 require the University Council to prepare financial
statements 1n respect of the University, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Usiversity at the end of the financial year and the operating results of the University for that vear

The Council 5 also responsibie for ensuring that the University keeps proper accounting records
which disclose with reasonable accumcy the financial position of the University, The Council is
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the University,

The Council 8 responsible for the preparation and presentation of the University's financial
stalements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the University for and s at the
mﬂufﬁeﬁmamﬂymmﬂedmjmﬂm%mpmﬁbﬂﬂyhﬂuﬁﬁmhm&ﬁg
adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective
throughout the reporting perind; matntaining proper accounting records, which disclose with
reasonable acturacy at any time the Arancial position of the University; designing, implementing
and maintaining internal controls relevant o the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements, and ensuring that they are free from material misstatements, whether due to ervor or
fraud; safeguarding the asseis of the University; selecting and applying appropriate accounbng
policies: and Making accounting esthmates that ave reasonable in the circumstances,

The University Council accept responsibility for the University's financial staternenis, which have
been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonsble and pruden:
Judgements and estimates, in confurmity with Ineernational Public Sector Accounting Standards
{(IPSAS), and in the manner required by the PFM Act, 2012 and the University’s Act. The Conneil
is of the opinion that the University's financial starernenis give a tene and fair view of the state of
The Univarsity's transections during the finandal year ended June 30, 2020, and of its financial
position as at that date. The Council further confirms the completeness of the accoumiting records
mairtained for the University, which have been relied upon in the preparation of the University's
financial seatermnents as well as the adequacy of the systems of internal financial control.

Nuthing has com 0 the attention of the Council to indicate that the University will not semain a
going concern for at least the next rwelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements

The University’s Enancial statements were approved by the Couneil on

a2 R e ren i W B e e 2000 i siigned o 368 Behalf by
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REPORT OF THE UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS ON THE UNIVERSITY'S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENMDED 30 JUNE, 2020
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

Telaphone: 2154020 3214000 HFADQUARTERS
E-mail: infolmoagkenya go.ke Anniversary Towers
Manrovia Street

VWebsita weww. oagkenya. goke
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL FrEQx 50D DO10D

MATRCE]
Enhancing Accountabiling GIE

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON KIBABII UNIVERSITY FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE, 2020

REPORT CON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Qualified Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kibabii University sat out on
pages 78 to 118, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2020,
and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets,
statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. | have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Kibabii University as at 30 June, 2020, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the
Universities Act, 2012 and the Public Finance Management Act, 2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Receivables from Exchange Transactions

As discussed in Note 24 to the financial statements, the statement of financial position
reflects receivables from exchange fransactions balance of Kshs.256 862,020 which
includes student debtors fee balance of Kshs. 253,644,029, However, examination of
supporting documents revealed that an amount of Kshs 28 833 449 of the student's
debtors relates to students who have since graduated while an amount of Kshs.2 218,070
relates to students who have deferred their courses. Although clause 14 3 of the student’s
handbook stipulates that a student can be allowed to defer studies for a period of three
years, a total of Kshs, 226,700 has been outstanding for a period of more than three years.

Further, an amount of Kshs.123,002,005 relates to students who were active but not
reported in the system. Although Management explained that it was the responsibility of
the students to report in the system, it has not explained why it has taken too long to
enforce compliance. Management has also indicated that the certificates were still under
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its custody and would only be issued upon fees clearance. The University has appointed
a debt management committee to assess the recoverability of the debts but details of the
certificates withheld on fee defaulting, Council minutes approving graduation of students
with fee balance and report by the appointed debt management committee were not
availed for review.

In the circumstances, the recoverability of the student fee debtor balance of
Kshs.253,644,029 could not be confirmed while the huge fees arrears continue to impact
negatively on the University's budget implementation due to low revenue collection.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards of Supreme
Audit Institutions (ISSAls). | am independent of the Kibabii University Management in
accordance with ISSAl 130 on the Code of Ethics. | have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAl and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. | believe
that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, except for the matters described in the
Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section
of my report, based on the audit procedures performed, | confirm that nothing else has
come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been applied
lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion
1. Non-Compliance with the Law on Fiscal Responsibility - Wage Bill

The statements of financial performance reflects an expenditure of Kshs.B81,784 372
against compensation of employees representing 74% of the total receipts of
Kshs.1,193,554 671. This is contrary to the provisions of Regulation 26(1) (a) of the Public
Finance Management Regulations, 2015 which limits the Government entity’s
expenditure on wages and benefits to not more than 35% of the total revenue for the year.
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Further, the University spent Kshs 881,784, 372 on employee cost against a budgeted
figure of Kshs.769,029,392 resulting in an over-expenditure of Kshs,112,754,980. No
explanation was provided for the excess expenditure incurred on employee cost during
the year under review.

In the circumstances, Management is in breach of the law.
2. Non-Compliance with Law on Ethnic Composition

During the year under review, the total number of employees of University was four
hundred and forty (440) out of which three hundred and thirty-one (331) or 75% were
members of the dominant ethnic community in the county. Further, the University
recruited thirty-three (33) officers during the year under review out of whom nineteen (19)
or (58%) were from the dominant ethnic community in the County.

This is contrary to Section 7(1) and (2) of the National Cohesion and Integration Act, 2008
which states that, "all public offices shall seek to represent the diversity of the people of
Kenya in employment of staff and that no public institution shall have more than one third
of its staff establishment from the same ethnic community”.

In the circumstances, Management is in breach of the law.
3. Non-Compliance with the One Third of Basic Salary Rule

Analysis of the University's payroll for the year under review revealed that a number of
employees earned a net salary of less than a third (1/3) of the basic salary contrary to
Section C.1(3) of the Public Service Commission (PSC) Human Resource Policies, 2016,
The Management has not given explanation for failure to comply with the policy.

In the circumstances, Management is in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAl 4000. The standard requires that |
comply with ethical requiremenis and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions, and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
prncedurﬂﬁ perfnnned. except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, | confirm that nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal contrals, risk management and overall governance were not effective.
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Basis for Conclusion

Lack of Information and Communication Technology (ICT) Continuity and Disaster
Recovery Plan

A review of the University's ICT governance documents revealed that the University did
not have an ICT continuity and disaster recovery plan. As a result, no documented and
tested emergency procedure had been put in place.

Consequently, the University faces the risk of disruption of services in case of disasters.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management, and governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and The University Council

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for such internal control as Management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
University’s ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the University or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015,

The University Council is responsible for overseeing the University's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinien in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit repert in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls will always detect
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a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance review is planned and
performed to express a conclusion with limited assurance as to whether, in all material
respects, the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial
statements are in compliance with the authorities that govern them in accordance with
the provisions of Aricle 229(6) of the Constitution and submit the audit report in
compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. The nature, timing, and extent of the
compliance work are limited compared to that designed fo express an opinion with
reasonable assurance on the financial statements.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and review of
compliance, | consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the |SSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a time period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with 1SSAls, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and for the purpose of
giving assurance on the effectiveness of the University's internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the University's
ability to continue to sustain its services. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
| am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the University to cease to
continue to sustain its service.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the University to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances.

| communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal contral that are identified during the audit.

| also provide Management with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

~
CPA Na , CBS

AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

26 January, 2022
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30
JUNE, 2020

ncome recognized 3

ue From Bxch Transsctons

Enﬁg of Services i0

Euhunﬁm 11
Revenue 12

[Use of Goods and Services 13

1 20,3
573, 1
Surplus/{ deficit) for ﬂ:n period/year Sﬂ,ﬁi 10,337,755
Retnission to National Treasury
Net Surplus for the year 873,754 10,337,753

The notes set out on pages B4 to 110 form an integral part of these Financial Statements
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE, 2020

MU SSN Y

i
hshs

Assais
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 288,372,660 4 255,607 072
Receivables fram Non-Excharge Trarsactions 23 52,098,040 30,723,316
Receivables from Exchange Transactions 24 356,862,020 266,385,511
Inventories < 25 6,098,479 8 495,382
bE3,431,19% o1, 7132 281
MNon-current assets
Property, Plant and Eqg wipmert 26 2004477 885 2,093 O70,461
Inmngible Agsets 27 27,144 9,066,086
2,204,505,029 2,102,136,557
Total Assets 2807 936,228 2,683,348 838
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
%;:f:a?;l;:iﬂwr Payables from Exchange 28 107,420,581 i
Refundable Deposits from Customers 29 B, 257 4650 8,662,550
Deferred Income 30 39,678,125 61,859,360
Employes benefil obligation 3 75297 122 86,293 582
Fayments Received in advance 32 24,767,912 40,214,144
Frovisions k< 32,598,040 23 179 48
302,019,330 308,730,652
Total Linbilities 302,019,530 308,730,652
Net Assets 2.505,916,698 2,374,618,156
Reserves 2.225482,751 2,135,804, 168
Revenue FReserves 280403 047 58,754, M3
Capital Fund 2,505,916,6598 | 2,374,618,186
Total Net Assets and Liabilities 2,807 936,228 2,553,348 838

The Financial Statements set out on pages 78 o 110 were signed on behalf of the University Couneil

b}'- ] k
X =
(A% =
L T
VICE CHANCELLOR  HEAD OF FINANCE
NAME: ¢
NAME: b

. ICPAK MEMBER NO: 7492
DATE: T'%"-F.J:R',Lw,_ﬁ DATE: ”-ll *-..H,;. -2.]
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i

CHAIRMAN OF COUNCIL

MNAME:
DATE:
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES iN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE

2020

Capital

Resarves

Revalvation

Reserves

Kevenoe

Keservies

E|RASI UMIVERSITY |

At July 1, 2018 581,843,327 1,434 485,296 208,600,573 2,224,929,196

Total comprehensive ! '

income . 0 4 10,337,755 10,337,755

Capital] Development ]

grants received during the

year 139,351,235 g 0 139,351,235

Tzansfer of

Depreciation/ amoriizatic

n from capital fund to

retained earnings -15.815,690 0 19,815,690 0

A June 30, 2019 701,378,872 1,434 485,296 238,754,018 2,374,618,186

At July 1, 2009 701,378,872 1,434,485 296 238,754,018 2,374,618,185

Total comprehensive

mcome 0 ] B ad 873,753
[ Capital/ Development

grants received during the

year i 130,424 759 1) ad 130,424,759

Transfer of

Depreciation/ amortisatio

n from capital fund to

i 40,806,176 0 40,806,176 0

At June 30, 2320 790,597,455 1,434 485,295 250,433,947 2,505,916,698
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SO182mY

Kshs,
Cash Flows from Operating Activitles i
Racaipits E
Other Organizational Grants 6ib) —— 12,086,403
Public Contribtions and Doraticns 7ib) 100,000 519,800 |
Transfers from Government- Excheguar Grants i) B61,079,645 B05, 240,687
Rendering of Services L0k 275,162,670 | 340,568,426 |
Use of goods and servicss 13(b) 112,511 662 i 132,520,377
Tﬂb&[!&:ﬁ.l:lﬂ WM 1,120,804,655 |
Payments ' ]
Campensaton of Employess 15(%) B41.810,124 j 731,580,801 |
Remuneration of Counel]l Members 16 1% 506,054 ; 16,095,810 !
General Expenses 15k — 201,784,243
Repairs and Maintsnance B | 11613200 | 8,590,502
PR & Marketing Costs | - 4,728,088 |
Total Payments I 1,028 743 353 - 62, 79, E80
Net Cash Flows rom: Opesating Activitiss 34 ' 51006510 | 157,625,175
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
||
Purchass of Property, Flant, Equipment and Intangible Asssts | 26 i 1
T aa3gs | 162599882 |
'I [}
Net Cash Flasws wsedin Investing Activities -145.850,032 | 162,559,882 |
Cash Flaws from Financing Activitles i 3
L i
Capital Daveloprnent Graria i Bl 130,424 759 i 11@55;@5__}
et Cash Flows used in Financing Activities 130,426,759 ¢ 136,653,238 |
! = i i
Mat increasef{decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents : |
; i marsy |  umem |
32,421,337 | 151,718,528 |
Cach and Cash Equivalents at 1 July, 2019 ] . :
Equ at 1 July, 2 255,600,092 JE e,
Cash and CUrsh Equivalents at 30 June, 2034 j 2z ! 263,028,405 | 255,607,072 ¢
a
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNME 2020

Eavenue from non-

lexchange fransections

Other Organizational I

Grants 66,549,307 310,893 35,234,409 27,607,544 7ss08s5] 22| 2
Public contributions and

donations ' - - 46,100,000]  (46,100,000)] 100| 5
i |

| Exchequer Granis 10,356,330, §10,356,350 610,356,330

Gol Grants 2017-2071

lCEAﬁn‘em 52,058 040 52, 1] 52098040 100 £
Revenue {Tom non- |

£xc pansactions 05,532 | 20,757,147 697 692 779 5B4,103,874 13,588 905
Bevenue from 2

iransachons - =
Rendering of serdoes- |

Tuition Fees 268,423,520 27,896,369 2053203101 285,314,495 10,005815) 3
IGU Incomes ' 22,000,000 20000000 237843081  (L7BAMIG)L ()
Rentsl revernag 2,300,000 | 2,300,000 2,498,360 (198360} (%)
se of goods and

SErvices §4.451 450 34,491 430 §7.385,739 (28842590 (5
Total revenue from |

exchange lransactiors | 377,215,401 27,895,389 £05,111,7%0 399,982 897 5,128

Total Revenuse | agsairigas|  €3663536) 1102R045694 1084086771 18,717,737

| Expenses

Employes costs 597431 351 19,500,000 716,931,351 7o3o74843]  (Pe343492)1 (11}
CBA J0A7-M] Amreare | - S2.096,040 | 52, 095,040 520980405 100) 5
Femumneratian of i

directors 16,000,000 2,000,000 14,000,000 18546064)  (546064])] (3}
Depreciation &

amortdzabdonexpense D00 000 ______@ﬁ?______ﬁiﬁ-&ﬂ 93,506,156 il Wyl A
Fapairs and

maintenance i 11,600,000 115,000 11,715,000 11,518,440 (1o3440)| ()
General expenses i 258, 596,022 1,310 207,585,125 203,423,257 2i7ar2es| 2

| PR &Marketing Cosis g 5193660 | - 5,163,660 3,013,787 1573 42] &
Sub-total expenses i.l 1056125 023 43,683,536 1102808569 | 1123582587 (20,778,018 |

Tatal nEsd E 121,033 48,683,538 02 59 11 BT (0, 75008 }
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5

ey ; 5 = i s e i a .
e changes belvsen the -,_'Ji'a_g‘;.:.a{ givel final budoet

The University's approved budget for 2019/2020 financial was of Xshs.l, 05¢,121,033 and
Kshs.300, 000,000 for recurrent and capital development expenditure respectively. The recurrent
budget was revised upwards by Kshs 48, 683,536 to a finsl revised recurrent budgst of Kshs1,
102,804,569 This revision was informed by additional exchequer grant aliocations of Kshs77,
409,357 out of which Kshs.52, 088,040 was to be uiilized for payment of srrears due from the
2017-2021 Collective Bargaining Agreements signed between the three Undons; UASU, KUSU and
KUDHEIHA and kshs.27, 895,389 From A LA,

In addition to this the University made other revisions to address issues that emergad after initial
budget aporoval whichk could not be anticipated at the time of budgeting e.g. COVID-19
coniainment expenses and to ensure that ftems and/or activities thet were not caprured arz
included and vote heads that may have had high allocation re-exarnined and funds reailocated to
budget lines that had lower allocation and require additional funding,

The capital development budget on the other hand was reduced by KSh 165, 575,241 As a result

of a budget cut by the government aimed at haling all capital development projects o allow for
charmeling of funds towards the containment of the novel COVID-19 cisease.

L Other Organdzational Grants

The Under expenditure under this vote head resuited from a vendor mot honouring their
obligations under the coniract which led to re advertisernent of tenders anc therefore delayed
:']ILpIﬂILE{ltaﬁnn

. Pable Contribuons snd DonaBons

The University Received Kshs 46 million worth of book donations which had not been anticipated
ai the time of budgeting, hence the variance

=B s = g =y N
d. Gol Grands H7-23021 CH A Arrears

The University had not received funds for payment of CBA Arrears from the Government of
Kenya as at the end of financial year 2019/20.This was due court disputes on implementation of
the collective bargaining agreement

5. CBA 20072071 Azvears

This under expenditute resulied from delayed disbursement of funds to pay the 2017-2021 CBA
Arrears

[

orie B Al oyl-aliive Comeen
Th ik ;:'.'.-l....-u-..'...l.'_LF L O8I5

3.

The University was sble o save marketing cost by 42%. This was as result of Memorandum of
understanding with Nation media who offered to advertise the university programraes for free a3
an after sale service.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Kibabii University is established by Kibabii University Charter, 2015 and derives its authority and
accountability from the University’s Act. The University is wholly owned by the Government of
Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya. The University's principal activity is to provide teaching,
research and extension sexrvices.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREFPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement
at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment at fair value and impaired
assets at their estimated recoverable amounts. The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of
estimates and assumptions, It also requires management to exercise judgement in the process of
applying the University's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed in Note Z5.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the
functional and reporting currency of the University.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the FFM Act, the State
Corporations Act, The University’s Act and International Public Sector Accounting Standards
{IPSAS). The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years
presented.

3, ADOPTICN OF WEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

i. New and smended standards and interpretations in issue bat not yet effective in the year ended
A0 Jume 2020

| Standard Effective fate and impact:

IPSAS 42: Social Benefits [Applicabls: ¥ [anuary 2022

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful
representz tivensss and comparabiliy of the information that a reparting
entity provides in = financiel smiements about social bengfits. The
information provided should help users of the financial statements and
general prrpose financial reporks sssess.

al The nature of such social benefits provided by the entity;

b} The kev features of the operation of those social benefit schemes; and
¢} The impact of such social benefits provided on the entily’s financiall

performance, financial position and cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

NOTES TO THE FIRANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other Improvements to  {Applicatle: 1% Janusry 2021

IPSAS 8} Amendments to [PSAS 13, to incinde tha aperopriace references
to [PSAS on impairment, in place of the current refecences 1o
other international and/ or national accounong rameworks

bj  IPSAS13, Leases and IPSAS 17, Property, Plant, =nd Equipment.

Amendments to remove transibiona provisions waich should

have been deteted when IPSAS 33, First Time Adcotion of
Accrual Basis International Public Sector Accounting Standards

([PEASS; was approved
a) IPSAS 21, impairment of Non-Cash-Generating Assets and
IPSAS 26, Impairment of Cash Generating Asseis,
Amendments to ensure consistency o impaivmen: puidance to

sccount for revalued assets in the scooe of IFSAS 37, Property,
Flant, and Equipmen: and IFSAS 31, Dytangible Assets,

iEL} IPSAS 33, Firsr-time Adoprion of Accruz! Basis Interational
Puaplic Sector Accounting Stendards {IFSASs),
Amendments to the implementadion puidancs on deemed cost
i [FSAS 33 15 make it consdstent with the cor2 prindples in the
Standard

T A,

ii. Early adoption of standards

The University did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in year ended 300
June 2020,

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

al Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange wansactions

Transfers from ather government entlties

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured af
fair value and recognized on obtaining conorol of the asset (cash, goods, services and
property) if the transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits
or service potential reiated to the asset will flow to the University and can be measurec
reliably. Recurrent granis are recognized in the stmtement of comprehensive income.
Development/capital granis are recognized in the stetement of financial position and
realised in the statement of comprehensive income over the useful life of the assets that has
been acquired using such funds.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i} Revenue from exchange iransactions
Rendering of services

The University recognizes revenue from
rendering of services by reference to the stage
of completion when the ocutcome of the
transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage
of completion is measured by reference to
labour hours incurred to date as a percentage
of total estimated labour hours. Where the
coniract outcome cannot be measured reliably,
revenue is recognized only to the extent that
the expenses incurred are recoverable,

Sale of goods

Revenue from the szle of goods is recognized
when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
usually on delivery of the goods and when the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably
and it is probable that the economic benefits or
service potential associsted with the
transaction will flow o the buyer.

Hental incorne

Rental incorne arising from operating leases on
investment properties iz accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms end
included in revenue.

Budget information

The original budget for FY 20192020 was
spproved by the National Assembly in june,
2019. Subsequent revisions and additional
appropriations were made to the approved
budget in accordance with specific approvals
from the University Council. The additional
appropriations are added to the original
budget by the University upon receiving the
respective approvals in order to conclude the
final budget Accordingly, the University
recorded additional appropriations of Kshs.
106,105,746 on the 20192020 budgets
following the Council's approval.

The University’s budget is prepared on 2
different basis o the actual income and
expenditure disclosed in the financial
statements.
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The financial statements are prepared on
accrual basis using a classification based on
the mature of expenses in the statement of
financial ance, whereas the budget is
prepared on & cash basis. The amounts in the
financia! statements were recast from the
accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified
by presentation to be on the same basis as the
approved budget A comparison of budget
and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable
basis to the approved budget, is then
presenied in the statement of comparison of
budget and actual amounts,

In addition o the Basis difference, adjusiments
t0 amounts in the finandial statements are also
made for differences in the formats and
classificaion schemes adopted for the
presentation of the fnancial statements and
the approved budget.

A staternent to reconcile the actual amounts on
a comparable basis included in the statement
of comparison of budget and actual amounts
and the actuals as per the statement of
financial performance has been presented
under secton xxx of these financial statements.

¢} Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items. When significant paris of
property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the University

such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognized
in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied.

. All other repair and maintenance costs are

recognized in surplus or deficit as incurred.
Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange
transaction for nil or nominal consideration
the asset is initially measured at its fair value.
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dj Intangible assets

Intangible agsels acquired separztely are
mitially recognized at cost. The cosi of
intangible assets acquired in a non-exchange
transaction is their fair value at the date of
the exchange. Foliowing initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. Internaily generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalized
development costs, are not capitalized and
expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficit
in the pericd in which the expenditure is

mcurred.

The ugeful life of the intangible asests is
assessed as either finite or indefinite.

e} Research and development cosis

The University expenses research cosis as
incurred. Development costs on  an
individual project are recognized as
intangible assets when the University can
demonstrate:

= The technical feasibility of completing the
asset so that the asset will be available for
wae or sale

o ts intenton to complste and its ability
to use or s2ll the asset

* IHow the msset will generate future
economic benefits or service potential

« i{The availability of resources to
complete the asset

» T1The ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during development.

Following initial recognition of an asset, the
asset is carried at cost lass any accumulated
amortization and accummlated impairment
losses. Amortization of the asset begins
when development is complete and the asset
is available for use. It is amortized over the
period of expected future benefit. During
the period of development, the assset is
tested for impairment annually with any
impairment losses recognized immediately
in surplus or deficit.
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1) Inventories

Inveniory is measured at cosi upon initial
recogniticn. To the extent that invemtory was
received through non-exchange transactions (for
no cost or for 8 nomina! cost), the cost of the
inventory is its fmir wvalue at the date of
poguisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its
present location and conditions are accounted

for, as foliows:

* (Raw materials: purchase cost using the
weightad aversge cost method

= Finished goods and work in progress: cost
of direct materizls and labour and a
proportion of marafacruring overheads based
oni the normal operating capacity, but
excluding borrowing cosis

After initizl recognitiorn, inventory is measured
at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
However, to the extent that & class of inventory
is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a
nominal charge, that class of inventory is
measured at the lower of cost and current
replecement cost.

Net realizeble value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of operstions, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary o mekes the sale, exchange, or
distribution.

Inventories are recognized as an expense when
deployed for utilization or consumption in the
ordinary course of operations of the University.

3 iia
g} Provisions

Provisions are recogrized when the University
has a present obligation (l2gal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources smbodyving economic
benefits or service potential will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amour of the obligation.

(=]
wl
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Where the University expects some or all of
a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an  insurance contrack, the
reimbursement is recognized as a separate
asset only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain.

The expense reisting to any provision is
presented in the statement of financial
performance niet of any reimbursement.

Contingent liabilitizs

The University does not recognize =a
contingent Lability, but discloses details of
any contingencies in the notes to the
financial statements, unless the possibility of
an outflow of rescurces embodying
economic benefits or service potential is
remote.

k) Mature and parpose of reserves

The University creates and mainfains
reserves in terms of specific requirements.

Revaluation Reserves

This represents the change in values of
assets after a revaluaton that was
undertaken during the FY2013/2014. It
represents the value of assets previously
owned by Kibabii Diploma Teachers
Training College  iransferred to Kibabii
University.

If the carrying amount of a class of assets is
increased as a result of revaluaton, the
increase is credited dirvecily to revaluation
surplus. If the carrying amount of a class of
assets iz decreased as a result of revaluation,
the decrease is recognized in surplus or
deficit. Revaluation increases and decreases
relating to Individual assets within a class of
property plant and eguipment are offset
against others within the class. Some or the
entire revaluation surplus included in net
assets/equity in respect of properiy, plant
and equipment is transferred directly to
accumulated surpluses or deficit when the
assets are derecognized either by disposing
or retiring it.

Capital Reserves

This represents the values of Assets
capitalized as a result of Capital development
funding received from the Government of
Kenya through the Ministry of Education
state department of University Education.

Revenue Feserves

This represents Surpius or deficits incurred/
accumulated over time by the University as a
result of its activities.

i) Changes in accounting policies and
estimates

The University recognizes the effects of
changes ir accounting policy retrospectively.
The effects of changes in accounting policy
are applied prospectively if retrospective
application is impractical.

j) Employee benefits
Retirement benefit plans

The University provides retirement benefits
for its employees. The University operates a
defined contribution plan under which the
University pays fixed contributions into a
separate fund, and has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits
relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods.

The contributions to fund obligations for the
payment of retirement benefits are charged
against income in the year in which they
become payabile.

k) Foreign cusrency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially
accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange
on the date of the transaction. Trade creditors
or debtors denominated in foreign currency
are reported at the statement of financial
position reporting date by applying the
exchange rate on that date. Exchange
differences arising from the seitlement of
creditors, or from

KIBARI UNIERSITY | e
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the reporting of creditors at rates different
from those at which they wers initially
recorded during the period, are recognized
as income or expensss in the period in
which they arize.

I} Borrowing costs

Borrowing cosits are capitalized against
qualifying assets as part of property, plant
and equipment.

Such borrowing cosis are capitalized over
the period during which the asset is being
acquired or constructed and borrowings
have been incurred. Capiialization ceases
when construction of the asset is complete.
Further borrowing costs are charged io the
staternent of financial performance.

m) Related paclies

The University regards a related party az a
person or an entity with the abilily to exert
conirol individualiy or joinily, or to exercise
significant inflnence over the University, or
vice versa. Members of key management are
regarded as related parties and comprise the
University Council, the Vice Chancellor and
senior managers.

n) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and cash at bank, shori-terre deposits
on call and highly liquid investments with
an original maturity of three months or less,
which are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank
account balances include amounts held at
various commerciz]l banks at the end of the
financial year.

3} Compeyative figures

Where necessary comparztive figures for the
previous financial year have been amended
or reconfigurad to conform to the required

changes in presentation.
pl} Subseguent evenis

There have been no evenis subssguent to the
finanicial vear end with & significant impact
on the finsncial staternents for the year ended
June 38, 2020.

5 SIGNIFICANT
SOURCES OF
UNCERTAINTY

JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATION

The preparation of the University's financial
statemenis in conformity with [FSAS requires
management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that zffect the reporied
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilifes, and the disclosurs of confingent
lighilities, at the end of the reporting pericd.
However, wncertainty about thesa
assumptions and estimztes could result in
outcomes that require & materiai adjustment
to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptiona

The key sssumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation
uncertainiy at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and labilities within the next financial year,
are described beiow. The University based its
assumpiions and eshmates On parameters
available when the consolidated financial
statemenits were prepared.

e i i e i e . S B 1 .
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However, existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments may
change due to market changes or
circumstances arising beyond the control of
the University. Such changes are reflected in
the assumptions when they occur, [FSAS 1.140

Uszeful lives and residua! values

The useful lives and residual values of assets
are assessed using the following indicators to
inform potential future use end walie from
disposal:

» The condition of the asset based on the
assessment of experiz employed by the
University

» The nature of the asset, its susceptibility
and adaptability to changes in technology
and processes

* (The nature of the processes in which the
asset is deployed

:  jAvailability of funding to replace the
asset

Changes in the market in relation to the
assat
Depreciation is calculated on straight line
basis, at annual rates estimated to write off of
carrying values of the assets over their
expected useful lives, Assets acquired during
the year are depreciated from the date of
acquisition.

a

The annual depreciation rates in use are:

Building 2%

Furniture, plent and equipment 12.5%

Motor Vehicies 25%

Computers 33.3%

Library books 20%

Freehold land is not depreciated as it is
deemed to have an infinite life

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management
determined &an estimate based on the
information available. Additional disclosure of
these estimates of provisions is included in
Note 28,
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Provisions are measured at the management's
best estimate of the expenditure required to

settle the obligation at the reporting date, and
are discounted to present value where the effect

is material.
Provision for bad debts
The University makes provisions based on

&. {3} OTHER ORGAMNIZATIOMNAL GRANTS

b rrjal e

Agtual
PE“.“P“‘Eﬂﬁi““' AHEAD 2435.302 3,340,013
MEF Fesearch Srants io
Srudents i 3,627,600 341,000 |
‘Mational Drame & Films Festoval

M: - 3614, 750
MEF Research Grants ICT 22 866,419 2,740,640
Mational bAubtiplication Trainimng

jest- 1,233 523 -

Total Ciher Organization
Granis 29,852,944 AR

&. (b} OTHER ORGAMIZATIONAL GRANTS

Cther Orgasization granis Recognleed in the
iziemsent manclal e 20352944
Leas: Conditlonsl Graet funds recelved In
_prios periods .
MRE 1T grant funds received in FYZO18/20HS
Unilized in FY'2019/2020 (22,866,418) |
Audd: Un expended granis received during the
year | diferred incomse)
Commanwealth of Learning- Technalogy-
_Enahied Lessning 683,184
Amog cogaized ia Thow staie i 7671703 |
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Y. (@) PUBLIC CONTRIBUTICHS AND

DONMATIONS

2118-2019
Kshs.

2019-2020 |
Kahs, |

Description

Abno Soffwaras i
Limited : 100,006
Burgoma West |
Medicai services i 160,000 !
Bungoma Chemist
= 20,000
Barowest 1
- 7000
Eldoret Haspital :
| 100000 |
]
Rich Science World j
_ - 10,600
I
& Fertility Centre | ]
ph . - § 100,000
Stanbic Bank ;
Limited - | 50,000
{
Staff Members :
- | 22,800 |
Domation of books I[
25,000,000 | 1,248.000 ¢
¢ 1 1
others ! E
‘ - 110,000 |
E 1
Total : |
[ 46,300,000 | 1,862,800 |

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEM

AND

7. (&) PUBLIC CONTRIZUTIONS
BOnaTIONS

I Pabii
Contributiane

i and Donations |

! Raeognizedin |

the Steiement of |
Fimanzial i

Parformance

+ Lass: Cromallons
In king

Books
Amasnt
Recoznized in
the Staremen: of

{0000
da) TRANSFERS FROM GOVERNMENT

21825

1 |’l.'.-|.'|:i|11i|."|'|
Kshs
ngl E.E‘:ﬂ
Operatioz
g £62 458,370 o swimined
Orther z
oo =
¥ L5710 605,440,687
Conditiora
Capite]
Developme i
|t grants T | 135,002,235
a T, 138,002,235
Total
gOvErHmen
t granis and T2 879,153 ;
| subsidies i

8 (b} TRAMSFERS FROM MINISTRIES, DEPARTMENTS AMND AGENGIES

Arounl

e s under

il [nenmic

Ministry of
Education, State [

Department for |

University r

Educationand | |

Ressarch : §62,454,370 | 130424759 752,879,139 792,875,126
s 562,454,370 | 130,826,759 752,379,123 792,679,125 |
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. DEFERRED INCOME RECOGNIZ

£D

A =20

Tuiion fess = 19,615,650
Total Bevenue from the Rendaring of Services i 19,815,650

10. {a) REMDERING OF SERVICES - TUITION FEES

21921120

Kshs

Tuition fess 275,795,435 | 340,666,426
| 275,795,495 | 340,666,425
10. (b) RENDERING OF 2ERVICES - TUITION FEES

Rendering of Services - Taltion Fee Recognized in the Statement of Financial Performance 275795435

Add: iy e

Tition fee Earmed In prior period bt received i FY 2016, 2020 Decrease in Receivables irom Exchange

Transactions) 4,523,491

pvon cash income - Decreass in provision for bacd debts 2835918 |
_;._ﬂ_l:

Tuition fee received ir. pricr period but peco 15,446,037
| Amount recognized in the statement of cash flows 270,162,670

1t IGU INCOMES

: ||.,"-|.'| | |'|'. ir.'-l1

I -2

wuhs

IGU Incomes

Catering Income 6,615,556 8910325
Accommodation Income 16,544,000 16,020,352
Farm, Grass Cutting 87,675 11,270
Photocopying & Bindary Services 46,235 11,070
Hire income 3r.ra0 1,267,105
Total Bevenue from the Seiz of Goods 23,766,116 26,229,112

12. RENTAL REVENUE FROM FACILITIES AMD EQUIPHMENT

Description

Te-z020

ksh=

2 H-201

Total Rentals

2,498 360

Z.559,B40
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13. (2) USE OF GODODS AND SEQVICES

Description

2079-2020 |
Kshs, |

2{18-2019
Kshs.

Activity Fee 5,934,500 6,845 850
Agency Fee 184,586 | 241,328
Amenity Fae 5,989,006, 5,836,850
Application Fee 1,055,612 786,570
Alumni fee 2,815,000 I' 2,213,000
Fines & Penaliies 175,034 | 3,726,650
Computer Fees 20,900 500 I 35,683,125
Examination fees 7,883,700 8,847,500
Identity Card x_ilz'_::s:u:ii 451250
SGC Collections 3,084,500 2,740,100
Library fee 500,500 534,000 |
Medical Subsidy 757,000 11,292,240
Registraticn Fee 862 000 : SB9,500
School Practice & Attachment/log 18324500 | 23,330,770
Supervision 7,263,000 E 7,963,500
Thesis Examination Fees 4 357, 500 r 5,030,500
CUE Fees 1,415,000 1,501,525
KUCCPS Fees 1502500 | 1,201,500
Graduation fee 9,992,600 | 9,502,809
Workshops & Conferences Fee 201,590 4 381 466
Sundry Income 294,740 1 551,500
Referrai/Supplementary / Remaking & Course

Repeat 77L& 1,704,771

112,718,752 | 132,410,835

15, (b} USE OF COODE AMD SEQVICES

Use ;ﬁm and services - Amount Recognized in the siatement of Financial -; 1276762 |
less: :

Decrease in refundable deposits from cuscomers i 402,200
Amount reccgnized in the statement of cash flows 'r! 112311552

ENBARI UMIVERSITY |




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

V4. OTHER INCOME

Me=cripinion

Decrease in other provisions ;.
Provision for bad and doubthel debts (Decreass) 289,916 50954
Decrease in provision{Leave dzys) 39,495 816 y
Total other income 40,570,534 509,542 |

15. {a} EMPLOYEE COSTS

Salaries and Wages 558,300,795 575,117,825
Employee Related Costs - Madical Aids 33,198,185 25,794,050
! Past Time Payments 12620877 168,392,164 |
E 2017-2021CBA Arrears 52,098,040
! CBA Pension Arrears X 16,079,639 |
Service Gratuity Accrued 1,915,007 0,769,235 |
E Leave Day Accrued o 5,509,552 |
ISSE Arrears z 2,546,800
Employes Costs 851,784,372 807,209,275 |
15. (b) EMPLOYEE COSTS
{ Compensation of Employees - Amount Recognized in the statement of Financia! Pecfocmance B41. 734 372 |
| Add:
| Employee benefit obligation (Tecrease] 10,996,360
iR
| Provisions - Incresse a7
; Decréase in provision/Leave days) (39,495 816)
| Amount Tevogmized in the statement of cash Flows 543,910,122 |

18. REMUMERATION OF COUNCIL MEMBERS

[rescreplion

2019-M120

Undversity Council emolumeis

Remuneraton of Council Members
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17. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

Dhescription 2019-2020 1 - 2N 4200

Kshs | Kshs.
Fraperty, plant and equipment 34,449,608 | 54,161,850
. A 9,028,952 0,006,952
Total depreciabion and amortization " . =

18. REPAIRE AMD MAINTENANCE

Maintenance of Catering & Hostel Facilities 4,075,370 1

EIBABIHUNMIVERSITY |

2T4FT1S
hiaintenance of Flant, Fumiture & BEquipment 1,053,587 il 21524 .
Maintenance of Building & Stations 2271975 | 794330
Msintenance of Water Suppliers & Sewerage 1,061,188 | 1215451
Mainbtenance of Flaygrousds & Perks -_1 277350 i
Maintenance of Computers 258,200 3
Metwork Installation and Maintenance expenses 3518 i 625956 |
Services Level Agreement (ABNO) expenzes 2714400 E 2714400
Total repairs and maintenance 13 §13,200 | B 500507
Sa
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19. {a) GEMERAL EHPEH%ES

Ill WP |III

ICT Hub Infrasouchees Ecniprment Grant

iricome Cenerating Units Davelopment Expenses

i rziing Tlndls Expense
Insurance and Legal

{nternet Bx
I‘i"E"‘——%E"IE\—1 . T

1&2%%&
Postal and Crzier Sexrices
I"uH.I.:CElE'bIl Hops & Punezals

M-a-dms.l.nbmd
Pumbaae +¢.'l1. Eouiprment
' aae of Stadomery

Cuzali 2
Heeruitrment & Training
Roqt and Bates
Fesaarch Expenses

ol Practice & Industrial Atachment 11,359,814 18,365,538
Cecuri i 15774352 13,190,910
& Confarenices 07,875 2197065 |
Senaty 582,029 204,066
Elections & Training 2 106345 1520730
%E 171510 1995386
trategic Plan & Master Plan Expemses TN 438510
hadder . 1,656,795 3,815,919
tudents Research Fund Expenses 1 830,000
eaching Matesial 2,198,794 2,553,025
Telephone 2 3,365,687
ender Expenses & Other Administzative _LAMEIE 708,320
Travel & Acc : 735,108 10,232,517
ggm_n‘Dnhameandl:ﬂ iwomic Leaming Expenses L103.360 -
[ Mationsl Multiplication Training Project Bxpensas 1210991 -
te Social Responscallity B 432,520 2
Covid-19 Mitigati ey £30,980 =
Furchase of Uniforms & Clothing I.-?'I';!._H;J'
Contingencies 1,415,830
af Mursing Theval Ex 138,435 _
Unrealized fopex Loss 1277 _
Total Generai Sxpensen 184 BT 780 | 0437973 e
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18. (b) CEHERAL EXPENSES

General Expanses - Amount Recognized ir tive staternent of Financial Perfcomance 164,555,006
L

Inwentory (Crecrease] 2397503
[ncresss in wade payable (32,498 56T}
Dacrease in Provision (584,753}
Amooni recognized in the statement of cash flows | 189,073,749

20. PUBLIC RELATIONS 2 MARKETING COSTE

Dedcription #11) kel 2 A-20T9

Advestising & Publlelty 1,619,280 ! 2,525,350
Publishing and Printing 237,550 | 45,230
University Shows & Exhibitions 112 | 743,484 |
Total PR & Marketing Coste 2,087,002 | 2,735,088

Z1. GAIN ON FOREIGHN EXTHANCE TRAMEACTION

y Llescription | S019-2030 | 20TR=2011%9

KShs
0536
P

Unrealized gain on forsign exchangs
Toial other ineoms

22 9. CASH AND CAEH EQUIVALENTS

Deseription : 2018-2019
3 : Kshs.
Current aceoune 135,3,'15? 253,486,487
Fixed depusits account 206,000 | 2,000,000
Others L491 | 120,590
Totel cash and cash equivalents 286,372,560 | 255,607 072

21 b, DETAILED AMALYSIE OF THE CAEH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

20 F9=20210 Z01E=-21FL%

{ Financial institution Account nomber Kshs. sba.

a) Currant eccounts 1

Keanya Commaercial Bank Limited 1133024559 109,541,716 SPA7 AT
Kenya Commercial Bank Lisited 113470R3TS 1 10,531,358 : 54565284
Fenya Commercial Bank Lirniced 1E3T40E 285 23385330 :' 16055322
National Bank of Kenya Limited 0128107682600 &28,185 428 025
Mationa! Bank of Kenya Limited 0100107687 2600 34 4R 023 27,126,628
Equity Barlk Limited-508 D4BI261211508 41,596,507 15,466,137
Equity Banl Limited-898 0500251717898 852743 425,993
Stendard Chartered Bank { (1020282771 18,075,959 16,821,289
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Family Bank Liméted Q7FO0002597% 46,926,216 49,017,807
Co-operative Banlk of Kenys Lid O1129669927300 70,223 15,135,068
Absa Bank Kenys FLC 22252626 808,025 1 514,935
Absa Bark Kenya PLC (Eurs } 2040024549 i 531,564 5,320
Abga Bank of Kenya Limited { Dallar ) 040024657 2,081 -
Sub- birtal 285,368,165 155,486,882
b} Fixed deposils accoumt
Equity Bani Limited (480365612597 | 2,000,000 2,000,000
Seb- toial 2,009,008 2,000,000
ej Others(speciivt
cash in hand ] - 120,590
Petty Cash 5 4491
i .
Sub- total : £a51 120,590
L]
Grand total 1 288,372,560 257,607,072
A

Descriphion

23, RECEIVABLES FROM NMOM-ENCHANGE TRANSACTICNS

201 9-20:20

20158-20149

Kshs. Kshs.

Current regeivables
Exchequer grants{Recurrent) - june '19 52,058,040 50,723,316
52,098,040 50,723,316

24. RECEIYABLES FROM EXCHAMGE TRANSACTIONS

Description 2019-2020 2018-2019
lKshs. Kshs.

Current recelvabias
Studenis fees debiors 253,044,029 259 442 332
Less: Provision for bad debis (12,682,201 ) (12,972,317 )
Staff debtors 3,687,397 7404501
{Other debiors 9,712,795 10,010,795
Zank guaraniee 2,500,000 2,500,000
Total curreni reseivabizs 256,862,020 266,385,511
Total receivables 256,862,020 266,385,511
03
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28, INVENTORIES

Description 2 _ : £ 2019-2020 | ] .':!I.HI:}:EI}I‘_T_
Kshs, Kshs
Consumable Stores 4,623,787
Medical Supplies & Labaratory Chemicals | 1,167 48D | 2,111,495
Elecirical, Building & Plumbing Materiais 2,841,680 | 974,275
Catering 632,339 ¢ 786,825
Total Inventories 2t Lower of cost and NEV 5,008,879 | 8,496,382 |
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA

27. INTAMGIBLE ASSETE-S0FTWARE

' Description 2019-2020°1 . i 20182009

- Kshs. Kshs.
Cost
At hEF'lI.IT.]'IIE of the year 27,126,600 27,148,000
Additions - -
At end of the year 27,145,000 27,142,000
Additions-internai development : .
At end of the year 27 Lag GILid 27,142 000
Amortizaiion and impaivrent
At beginning of the year 18,077.90¢ | 9,038,952
Amortization 9,028,952 9,038,852
At end of the year 273118,855 ) 18 077,904
Impairment loss - -
At end of ihe year 27 ITE A58 ] 18,077,504
NBV | 27 1as | 3,065,096

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAVAZLES FROM EXCHANGE TRAMSACTIONS

| 2018-2019
{ Kshs,

0019-2020
| Kshs.

Description

Trade payables | 45,300,325 7,427,704
Project Retention Money | 15,766,937 22,169,818
HELB account E 2,529,736 1,004 462
CDF ‘ 9,002,920 9,290,252
County Bursasy 4 770,350 i 2420,600
Otther Sponsors 2,622,189 ,l 2,416,100
Kibabii Universiiy Pension Scheme 518,184 ] 428,005
Kibabii University Needy Stzdants Fund 2,452,743 | 2,425,093
CBA Refund 2010-2013 Due 17543730 | 17,643,730
KIBU Sizff Recoveries - 251,084
Student Liability Account 344,251 | >
TUCEA 460,210 |

Total trade zed other payabiss 101,490,581 | 58,577,768

29, REFUNDABLE DEPOEITE FROW CUSTOMIERS

I Dreseription

2052000

kaha,

Hird-2009

KIEABN LIMMNWERSITY |

Cavtion Money 8,098,950 1
Deposit on Saif House Rent w8700 |
d
TOTAL i 8,257,650 | 8662550




30. DEFERRED INCOME

hescriplaon

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MNIRF Research Granis [TT Hulbr 38,992,541 61359 360
Commonwealth of Learning- Techoology-Enabdad Leamning 655 184 :
TOTAL 78,115 lﬁm

31. EMPLOVEE BENEFIT OBLIGATION

Descripbion

T
20119-2024

Koshs,

2018-201%

kshs

Third-party payments {Far-tiners claims) 45,035,720

| Pension Coniributions Due from 2013-2017 CBA - 16,307 664
| Service Gratuity Due 26,261,502 | 24 242,405
; TOTAL 75,207,222 36,293,552

52. PAYMEMNTS RECEIVED IN ADVANCE

Description

Prepaid Feas

1 9=2E

hshs

2001 8-26149

bshis

Total Depasits

24 Ta7.512

33. CURRENMT PROVISIONMNS

Descriplion

2017-2021 CBA

Leave provision

KShs

Arrears

Frovvision

K5hs

Other r”I'_'I'I. 1% 14

K5hs

Balance at the beginning of |
i the year S 39,495 16 2 3,627 432 43,123,248
| Additional Provisions " 52,098,040 52,098,040
: Provision Utlised (38495815 ) (3,137,432 (42,623,248 }
| Total provisions . 52,098,060 500,000 52,598,040 |
102
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME!

34. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

2019-2020 |

Kﬁ_hs. |

2018-2019
Kshs.

Surplus for the year Before Tax 873,752 10,337,755
Adjusted fon
Depreciation 93,451 560 | 75,200,842
Non-cash Grants Received 46,000,000 1,349,000
Unexpended Grants Utilized -22,866,215 0
Deffered Income | 0 -19,815,690
Unrealized Gains U
Contribution to Provisions 9474792 1,987,240
Working Capital Adjustments
i Increase;/ Diecrease in Inventory i 2,397,903 8,414,000
| increase/ Decrease in: Receivabies 8,148,767 | 46,900,51
Increase/ Decrease in Deferrec Income | 685,184 0
| Increase,/ Decrease in Payebies ; 1,097,302 1 73,781,456
Increase/ Decrease in Paymenis Received in 15,446,252 3,702,368
Advance
MNet Cash: Flow from Operating Activities 51,546,510 | 157,625,275
KIBABI UNIERSITY | 103
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The University's sctivities expose it o a variety of
financial risks mcluding credit and liquidity risks
and effects of charges in foreign currency. The
Univergitv's cve-all risk mansgement programme
focuses on unoredictability of changes in the
business environment and seeks to rninimise the
potential adverse =fect of such risks on iis
performance by saiting acceptabia levels of risk. The
Universits does rot hadge any risks and has in place
policies: to ensure that credit s only extended to
customers with o established cyedit history.

The Urdversity's fnancial sk management
objectives and po.icies are detailed below;

. Credstyizk

The Univarsitv has exposure to credit risk, which is
the rigk that & councerperty will be unable to pay
amounts in fuil when due Credit risk anis=s from
cash and cash ecuivelents. and deposits with banks,
as well as rade tnd other receivables and evailable-
for-sale firancial sovestments,

Management as:asses the credit quality of each
customer. taking niv account its fAnancial position,
past experierce and other factors. Individual risk
limits are set bmsad on inmrmal or external
assessment in acoordance with hmits set by Council.
The amounts presencsd in the siztemnent of financial
positicn are =zt of allowarces for doubthl
receivables, estmeted by the  University's
managemsnt bessd on prior experience and their
gssessment of the cur-ent economic envirornment

The carrving amoun: of fnanciz! assets recorded
the financizl statemerts represenang the University's
mexipur - expasure too credit misk without teking
account of the ~aive of any collaterai obtained is
made up a8 follows:

KIBABI UNIVERSITY |




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMET

Taotal amount

Fully performing | -~ Past due - Impaired

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
At 30 June 2020 :
Receivables from [
exchange transactions 256,862,020 247,149,225 1 ©,712,795 a9
Receivables from non- ]
exchange transactions 52,098,040 52,008,040 | L} Hy
|
B hetarices 288,368,169 288,368,169 | 9 0
Total 5 326,279 587615434 1 5712755 ) 5
At 30 June 2019 | '
Receivables from ! :
exchange fransactions 265,385,511 257.081,716 1  £,303,795 1
Receivabies from non- ] .
exchange transactions 50,723,315 | 50,723,316 J 0
i | ] .
————— 355486,482 1 255486482 ; 9 B
i | B72,508,300 565261514 | 5,300,795 5

The custiomers cnder the fully performing
category are paying their debiz as they
continue irading. The credit risk associated
with these receivables is minirral and the
allowance for uncollectible amounis that the
University has recognised in the fnancial
statements is considerad adeqguate to cover any
potentially  irrecoversble amounts. The
University hes significant concemtradon of
credit risk on amounis due from Students.

The Councii seits the University's credit
policies =and objectives and lays down
parameters within which the various aspecis
of credit risk management are operaiad.

ii. Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for lcwidity risk
managemsnt regts with the University's

KIEABN LUHMIVERSITY |

Council, who have buaill an appropriate
liguidity risk management framework for the
management of the IUniversity's short
medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Universiiy
manages lquidity risk through continuous
monitoring of foreczsts and actual cash flows.

The table below repraseris cash flows payable
by the University under non-derivative
finencial Hzbilities by ‘heir remaining
contractual metugzities 2t e reporting date.
The amounts discicsed in the fable are the
contractial pndiscountes casn fiows. Balances
due within 12 months 2guel el carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

e




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Between 1-3

Over 5

The Cournicil has pat in place an infernal audit
function to assist it in assessing the risk faced
by the University ¢n an ongoing basis,
evaluate and test the design and effectiveness
of its internsl accounting and operational
controls.

Market rizk is the risk arising from changes in
market prices, such as interest rate, equity
prices and forsign: exchange rates which will
affect the Tniversity’s income or the value of
its holding of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to
manage and conizol market risk exposures
within  scceptable  parameters,  while
optimizing the rsium. Overall responsibiiity
for managing market risk rests with the Audit
and Risk Managemeni Committee.

The University’s Finance Departmnent is
responsible for the development of detailed
risk management policies (subject to review
and approval by Audit and Risk Management
Committez) and for the day to day
implementation of those policies.

KIEABN LIMIVERSITY |

Less than

| month months months Total
Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

At 30 June 2020 )
Trade payables W75ELA8 | gogasyan|  Soremael 216395928
Provisions 52,598,040 0! 0 52,598,040
Fees Received in 0 0 0 24,767,912

advance |

Refundable Deposits i
IR 0 0 1 8,257,650 8,257,650
Total 60121 sopas7a0| 68085974 | 302019530

Af 30 June 2019 |
Trade payables 53074222 | 88,856,187 51,016,476 | 193,046,885
Provisions 2,546,800 26,658,782 | 40,076,448 69,282,030
Fep Bodvern 21424253 | 16,647,466 | 2,142,425 40,214,144

advance i
Caution Money ) | 8503950 8,503,950
Total 76,245,275 | 132,162,435 | 102,639,299 311,047,009
harket Risk There has been no change to the University's

exposure to market risks or the manner in
which it mansges and measures the risk.

a) Foreign Currency Risk

The University has transactional currency
exposures. Such exposure arises through
purchases of goods and services that are done
in currencies other than the local currency.
Invoices denominated in foreign currencies
are at mes paid after 30 days from the date
of the invoice and conversion at the time of
payment is done using the prevailing
exchange rate.

The carrying amount of the University's
foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and monetary iabiliies at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

The University manages foreign exchange
risk form future commercal fransactions and
recognised assets and liabilities by projecting
for expected sales proceeds and matching the
same with expected payments.

10s
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,

Other
CUrrencies
] Kshs
A 30 JTune 2020 {
Ffinancial assets
Investments oy iy &
Cash 287,838,655 533,565 288,372,660
Debtors L 258 862,020 'k 256,862,020
Total financial asseis i 544 700,715 533,565 548 234 B0
Financial Liabilites i
Trade and other payvabies 300,874,136 1,145,559 402,019,530
Borrowings ] 0 0
Total financial Habilities 300,874,136 1,145 394 302,019,530
Net foreign curvency
asself{liability) g 243826579 |  -61142% ] 243,215,158
Al 30 fune 2015 .
Ffinancial assats i ! _E
Investmenis ' , ] )
Cash i 255,601,752 5325 | 255 607,072
, Debiors 266,385,511 - 266,385,511
Toial finarcial asssts 521,987,265 g 330 521,992 585
Financial Liabilitizs ;
Trade and other payables | 308,730,652 g 308,730,652
Borrowings = -1 3
Total financial Hzbilities 308,735,652 - 308,730,652
| Wet foreign correricy
| asset/{tiability) 1 213,25€,611 | 5,320 213,261,951

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the effect on the University's statement of comprehensive
income on: applying the sensitivity for a reascnable possibie change ir: the sxchange rate of the
three main transaction currencies, with all other variables held constant, The reverse would also
occur if the Kenya Shilling aperecizted with all other variables held congian?

.L'h.r[.:gu_' in | il Effect om Profit i;lFfl.'l.'l on :
currency rale before tax ; equity
K:.~11- b A . Kzhs
Euro | 10% BAASE80 | =
UsD 10% 2,081 | -
2019 i [
Euro 10% 53z | -
usp 0k - -

KEBARI LINPAERSITY | I E,



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b) Inierest rate risk

Interest zate risk is the risk that the University’s financial condition may be adversely affected as
a result of changes ir interest rate levels. The University's interest rate risk arises from bank
deposits. This exposes the University to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk
exposure zzisss mainly from interest rate movements on the University’'s deposits.

Management of interest rate risk

To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with institutions that
offer favourable interest tetes.

Fair value of financial assets and Habilities

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
Disclosures of fair valies of financal instruments not measured at fair value have not been made

because the carrying amounts are 2 reasonable approximation of their fair values.

iv) Capikal Risk Management

The objective of the University's capital risk management is to safeguard the University's ability
to continue as a going concern. The University’s capital structure comprises of the following
fands:

201 8-201%9
Kshs Kshs

2019-2020

Revaluation ressrve 1,434 485,296 1,434.485,296
Retained sarnings 280,433,947 238,754,018
Capital reserve 790,997,455 701,378,872
Total funds 2,505,916,696 2,374,618,186
Total borrowings 0 0
Less: cash and bank balances 288,372,660 255,607,072
Net debt/ (excess cash and cash equivalents) -288,372,660 -255,607,072
Gearing 12 i

36. RELATED PARTY BALANCES
Nature of related party relationships
Entities and other parties related to the University include those parties who have ability to

exercise control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions.
Related parties include management personnel, their associates and close family members.

Government of Kenya

The Government of Kenya is the principal owner of the University. Other related parties include:

i. The Natonz! Government;
i, The Ministry of Education, State Department for University Education and Research;

ifi, Key management;
iv. University Council;

CIRARIN LIMIVERSITY |




2019-2020 2018-2019

Kshs

Transactons with reiated parlies ; F
a) Greals from the Govermiment i

Granis from National Govt 610,356,330 | 635,440,687
Granis from County Government i E (K
Donations in kind 0! ]
Total 1 610,236,330 605,440,687
b}  Key management compensation

Councils’ emoluments ) 18,546,064 16,095,810
Compensation to the Vice Chancellor 9,201,944
Compensabion to key management 17,256,286

] Tatal 18,548 008 L2514, 040 |

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

- 2018-201%
Kshs

Contingent liabilities AT 2015-2020 |
Kshs |

Case Number Bungoma NC Petltion no 15 of 2016.
David Murambi and two (2} others V5 the Couniry {
Government of Bungoma and Kibabii University for F !
trespass o property. | 2,500,007 | 2,500,000
Bungoma Employment ané Labour Relations Court ! i
Cause No. 61 of 2018 walubengoe Singore Muliro VS | |
Kibabii University. The fiability is yet to be determined - | 0
Kisnmu Employment and Lsbour Relations Court !

Cause No.blof 2018 Prof. Shem OAywa V5 the
Chairman of Council, the Chancelior Kibabii University 1
and Public Service Commissiorn. The liability has nce |
been determined - ]
Bungoma CMC MC ELC No 14 of 2020. Beairice N, i
Wanjala and another VS5 County Commissioner, | _ E
County Commandant and Vics Chancellor - Kibabi | :
University. An injunction restraining the respondents :
from interfering trespassing, developing, constructing,
or in any other way nterfering with the Plaintiff's LR

S —

No East Bukusu/North Kandwyi/ 588 : - 0
Bank gusrantees in favour of Teal Kenya ;. 2.50000 2,500,000 |
Total P 2500000 2,500,000 |

EIBABI UMIVERSITY | P



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. CAFITAL COMMITMENTS

| C ﬂs';it._':i I._.'IHH:IlI-itI!Il'J:It.H . '.E_I"i‘.'-'."-_"iﬂ'-‘_.l..'l 2018-2019
Kshs Kshs

Authorised for 130,310,000 61,700,000
Authorised and coniracted for | 0 130,424,759

| Total 130,310,040 192,124,759

(NB: Capital commitments are commitments to be carried out in the next financial year and are disclosed
in accordance with IFSAS 17) -

39, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.
40, ULTIMATE AND HOLDING ENTITY

The Usiversity is a Semi- Autonomous Government Agency under the Ministry of
Education. Its ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya.

41. CURRENCY
The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).

FIBAB LIMNMNERSTTY | 110



APPENDIX 1 pPROORESSE ON FOLLOW UPp OF AUGITOR
RECOMMENDATIONS

The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditos, and management
comments that were provided o the auditor. We have nominated foce: persors to resolve the
various issues as shown below with the asscriated time Zrame within wiich we expect the
isues to be resolved.

Beleren

Focil Point
on o

oir Mo, Timelrami:
on the fDbservations From Mana e . ih
- NManagement comments ¥ ' the
externmal  Awuditor o

Long Overdue Studerts Thz outstanding balance of

Fee Debioss vl
The statement of Amancial Kzhs. 55,812,807 is being
positonunder noke Z1{s) to investizated by the instaton
the financial ssatements

reported bolal current threugh debior’s
veceivebies of Eshe 384, 385, | circularizaton bo ascertain the
511 i.satS.EIIune 2018 : racovezrability status hence the
Inclhaded in the recelvablas

bilance of Kahs 258, 365, nor-recovarable debts ghall be

311 was student deldor's fea | meccmmandad to the
totalling Kahs 259, 443, 3332,
Aging saslyss evealad
et an smount of [shs 59, | off. The informaton shali be
AL2, B meevained availad for verfication during
ontstarding for over 1 year ) .
i contravenzon af the e nzst anedit excescise,
Uriversity's faes
menagernent policy,

Undversiny Councih for wiin-

Though clawss 14,3 of the
student’s handbook Feof 5. Shibairo - -
stipulates that & shadent can TVCIASA) WL, OO
be ailoweed ta defer shadies
for a period of thres yvears
and the managoment
incicates that the cages a2
being investgater Earough
debior’s civeularisa o bo
ascartain the recovrarabdbity,
the exerciss had nod been
conclidad as at dena of
adit

Im the circumstances, the
recoverability of tha siudent
fea debror balances of
Ksng 55, 812, BOY could mot
be confirmed and ihe hngs
fees erroarg contlnos ko
impact negadvaly on the
Urdiversity's budgpat
irplemnentation dis to low
revaniie oollaction,
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|
Relerence
B

WL o b 1
lassrir f Dlbhservations
external :

Crver Expeadibars on
Zmpiovee Costs

The statement of
fnanizl performance
undsr mote 14 refllects an
emphoyze casts oiziling
Kshs. 805, 525, 632,
Howrever, analyhics
procecure conoucked an
the financizl statemeris
revealed that the
employee cost consiiubes
3% of the ol eceipts
of K=hs.1, 280, 547,516

pr 8 comprising revenues
from both exchange and
Nef-exshange
transactions, and capital
grants. This comiravenss
Sectinn 26(1a) of the
Puhlic Finandal
Management Azt
{Mational Goversumens
Fagulations), 2013, which
puts a cap at 35% of the
botal recelpis.

I the drcamstanoes, the
Universiiy operated in
‘breach of s lew.

clgn the requirement of
Marsgement Act, 2003 and its
reguledons, 2015 i3 35% of the total
revenus, ihe University could not attain
this requirement because of its contest aa
& Fervice indwstry.
The core mandate of the University is
tie provision of guailty teaching,
reserrch and axtemsion services. These
are labour Intensive a5 the Upiversity is
required o emoloy quelified academic
and administrative staff to achieve i
mandate and to adhere to  the
Commission for University Educstion
regulations. This is the main
m w'.-Ermﬂie University's incurred the
Iergest cost om salaries.
Arcording to the 2015 CUE guidelines
oo estabiishment of & new Urndversities
in. Kerye, Chapter & gection 1,zubseciion
Z; Bach depastment should have at least-

. e professor) Associate
Frofessor

] Two other acedemic staff ai the
levwnl of lecturer {(FhD holders)

Toe Commission for  Universtty
Education, Universities Standards and
Guidelines, 2014 PROG/STD/17 further
guices on the qualification of academic
programme heads, heads of academic
grammg  speclalization areas, e
f:u:'lnoffuurimemlamﬁmemd.m:
staff members, minimom gualifications
For academic staff, lecturer: sindent mtia,
maximum number of students an
academle saff can supervise I any
given academic year and the maxirum
leciurer workload,
The University cannot st this Sme
redice the number of employees and is
mequired to increase the number to 527
up from the current 415 o operate at the
ppdmum thresh hokd, Incduded in these
costs are paymenis made to part Hme
lectarers whe heve not been employed
by the University on permanant and
pergionable terms and offer their
services to brldge the gap in tesching
staff that i3 expererced by the
Uriversify at present.
The University being young still has
wery low student mumbers while the cost
of teachimg is not dependent on the
stndent aumbers.
In crder bo mitigate the situation the
Uriversity is aggressively working on
the meview and development of
rogrammes that are market driven in
Err_!e:' t0 atract more students which will
imcharn raise the University's revenues
and reduce this percentage.

Facal Poind

Prof. Donald

DVC (AFD)

W.IFP

Continmous

FIBABI UMIVERSTTY |
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Lack of Ethnle Divasoiiy In
Staff Recruimnent

Audit verification and anzlysis
pracedure periormead on the
peyroll ravealed that, out of
four hundred and sivteen (4181
emplovess, threa hundred and
rdneteen (31%) represanting
To.1% are from the dominent
Lubya ethnic sommundiy

Consequently, the University
siaff estehlishreent and new
appointments during the yaar
failed W promose eshnic
divarsity in lime artcle 10 of
the consituton snd section
72} of Nationa! Conesion and
Integration Ack, 2015 whicn
récaires thet no public
establistonent shall hawve oss
than one thivd 24 lis gte & from
the same ethade comemunity.

The Uniwersity is making effcrs o

ebracs diversity in it
vecriment  although most
gpplicents come  from  the

expengive Luhys community that
comprise of more then 18 sub
tribes.

The majorty of saff are
adminisoradve and are in the Jower
cadres whick do nob  athst
gpplicants from other parts of the
coantry becansa of low wags rate.
The University has put ia place
fneasures i ensure athiic Siversity
in fohure secriifmeant processas so
25 o reduce the imbalance. Tha
University has indtiated mescures
to reduce the imbalance. For
exemple in the top managzment
positons there is ethric diversity
amemg e postian holders.

Proi, Donald
. Stembe
DVC (AFD)

Cantinuous

Iregular Varieton of
Constraction of Acadernds
Block Phase [T (hMain Warks)
Contract

Included in the property, plan:
and equi ni belance of
¥shz2, 053, 070461 under note
I3 to the financial statsment
are bulldings with a net boak
value of Kshe 891, 851,347 Out
of the buildings fgure, the
Univarsicy awarded & contract
to & locel condractor for the
constracHon of Academic
Block Phase [ (Main Works)
uneler comiract

Mo KIBLICC B0/ 14-15 worth
Eahs 36, 759,010, However,
review of the final account
revesled that the Undversity
wvariad the contract through
omission of worke, price,
quantiiy, measeramernis ard
introducton of exice works by
Kahs 15, 977920, Though the
vAnALSDS wane Feguestied
through site instrections aod
approved by the sccounting
offices, they were not
secornpanied by & certifican
from the tenderer makdng &
justificedon for such code
line with section 139(2) of the
Public Procurement and Asset
Dispozal Ack, 2015

In the circumsiances, it was mat
poesible to ascertain whether
the Uriversity got value for the
money paid on the project.

variations were done [owsrds
the end of the project henee fhe
amount of Kshs, 16,977,920 waz
covered in certificates numba:-
threa{3) and four (4) attached fSor
your verification

Frof, Denald
M, Siambe
DVC [AFD)

Rasolved

30 T, 2020
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Tralayed Delivery of 2
Conireet to Supply, nstall,
Teat end Commizsiona CCTV
Survelilance Sysem

Included in the rotal general
expansas Hgure of Kaha 719,
427, 973 urder note 18 to the
finencial statemnents are
expendirars of Kaha13, 190,
210 in respect of securlty
services. Review of payment
recaras revesled that & local
ponszitant was awarded a
tender to supply, nstall, and
rest and commissiona OCTV
surveillance sysaEm &t the
University an 27 [uly 2015, The
project was b be completed in
twelve (1) weeks,

However, the conizactor
recuested for extznsion of ime
by & peiod of twenty (20}

wesks on 15 Decemiber 2018

Tt is true that Contractor did
indform managemeant that
installation ard testing of OCTV
sysiem had been Analized snd
inwited the usess for training.

We subsequenity called for pre-
hand over ingpection with
Contractar and following issues
alnsa.

(i) There were 16 CCTV cameras
that had not be sctivated because
of missing on incompetible
switches, That is edating swiches
that had no powser over Ethernet
{POE) and therefore could not be
wsed in the activation of camer=s.
The Comenittes had requestad
varatlon of coptract to allow for
incluaton of these switches that
had ot Been inchuded In the BL.
The Committes sought authozizy
of Menagement. The Contractor
was psked o supply these switches
a6 thet during handover and
commissioning all camersas shall
have be activated. The Contractor
is importing te switches. Hence

and commitied o complete the | commissioning cannotbe dane but | o1y
project by 37 June 2019 will be done ad soon as the N Gigrmbm | Resolved |30 Jume, 2020
O 10 June 3015, the contractor | switches are installed. DVC (AFD)
informed the University's {if) Charing pre-hand over meetng
menagement thar the we tested the ramerss opesation
{nstallation and %esting af the | from control room and found out
TV syetem had been that performance was wanting. e
finalizad and irvited the users | realized that optical fiber
for & training, The project was | connection batwaen the SSrVer and
however yet to be handed over | library was slow. The alternative
and commissiorred as at the was to inetall & new fibre cable
time of audit in August 219, | and/or buy media converters. The
Though the mans gemeant other altesnative was o
avafled for sudic verification s | redistribute the NVE so that one
new periormancs bond by the | WVE zerves the library and l=in
comtracior execnbed on 15 the comiral room, second the serves
Cetaber 2017, the conitractos the main administration block and
wasno: on site as gt the time | third serves the academia. The last
of audit znd it was not option was chosen for it had no
ascertainehle when the project | extra financial implication.
would be delivered as per the | {ii) There was an issue with
specifiestions. stoTage capacity, so the Contractar

promised to make good of this and
Conseguently, the University | supply the appropriate memaory.
did pat obtain veine for meney | It is the considered opinion of
in the implemeniationof the | Management that ance the atove
system. igawes are sorted the CCTY sysiem

shall be commissioned, the

Centractor issued with compledan

certificate and paid his dues {Ses

DDC.E attachad).

1ls
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‘Weaknesaes in Faformation and
Commuanicafisn Tachnology
(1CT} Condral Exvironmani
Beview of the uiversey 1ICT
Eovemance documEnts and
Interwlews with B manegement
revealed the foliowing significari
weakneiges in the ICT contral
ETVITCRIED
L.Mon-establisheront of an B°T
sratepy commitiee at the coumnsil
lenral

. Lack of defined ICT taining
prograr on key seff memberns,
14 Lack of fornally docomented
and approved prooessas o
manage apgrades made o all
financial / periormence
nformetion. EyEbems

T, There is no formel change
:bquest decernentation
completed indicating the change
b be made and the reasons for 23
chamges o the fnensis] gyakees
T 2y Sy ST UPETRGEs.

w. There are no Dolicles n plece
which cower physica] access b
sensitve I0T environrmanis e.g.
server rooms during official and
after work hours,

wi There sre oo policies and
proceduras in plaoe bo ogwner

env Eonmeantal conirols. In
additien, no docwmented and
teshed smergency procedune heg
beEn gt in place.

vil Tha Undwersity does ot hases
an ICT eontnuity and disastes
racoeary plen The Bnlerprise
Regonses Planning (ERF) systery
is 58t b back up datly. Howewver,
guch baclkerps e not verified and
chiecked for storeasial
campleticn. For examgle, the last
veriiicston was dome an 15t
February 2019,

it There is ne farmally
cocusramited fnd approved wear
manegement standzrds and
procedures, In addition, thers ave
o processes i slace bo review
user access rights on the syrstem
and if the rights are in lme with
their responsibilities,

1=, The Univasioy doss not wse
the fmetable module which is
pari of the ERP sysiem, &
m&ﬂi‘.]' when _*:n.u.'rt Hemie
lecigrers, bath fnferretsnd
external meice cayreen: claims,

Congequently, ihe universiiy
fares the vk of didrirpgon of
services iy cace of disssters, and
due w0 wnanfherized 10T
infrasiructore scceds snd sysies
changes,

(i} The bdaregerent will weike
proposal to Lindversity
reguesking for the foemabon of such
A committes baged on thas sapdi:

[ii) Thve Urrinversity M v will
sza b0 it there i defined raining
progrem for 10T staff. Botfor stert
alt memmbars of JOT will be requined
o undarizke the cyber securiny
training this finemneial year, Bul
detziled training program will have
i be developed

{ifl) A documenied and approved
process will be developed.

(iv}) There is = draft chengs
eanagemeni policy. The policy will
be developed via the various
comenittess of the Undvarsity and
finally eeni to Connet] for approval,
Attached is & draft changn

mansgernent nolley a5 DOCE

(V) The Univeraity & rmplemenEng

the information securiry

management system (5ME) and will

factor this in the documentatios and Frof. Dansic W )
I i Sizmba WIFP Continuous

put emphasls during the lavmch of Ve

[EMS [AFT)

[vi) Thue Diirecior ICT wrill ensuoe that
back up are verified by the Systam
Admivdatrapie 59 per back up

(v} To be addvessed via I5h45

iwiti} To ba addressec by the
development of the users standards
s TeUira T e

(i) Traming end use of the Heme
abiing module will also be
implernenied.

The University dManz gement teles
nibe of Hhe audit quertas and wil usa
them to enhance security of 3107

Vice Chancelior

Cheirmmar of the Councll

L TE ¢ o




APPENDIX II: PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY THE UNIVERSITY

Projects
Projects implemeanted by the University Funded by development pariners

2 iba i NE 1 year 6,600,000
University
Information
Communicali

oM
Tachnology

Hub{KITCH}
Statua of Projects completion

re HUB 64,600,000 | 22816419 50 | 64.A00,000 | 64,600,000

Students '
Hostel 175,735,830 | 158,584,800 100 | 178,736,830 | 178,739,820 Gok

| @ 7081000 { 7807150 o)  7.98L000 | 7.98L0DD|  ALA

KA LMNERSITY |



APPENDIX IlI: INTER=ENTITY TRANSFERS

ENTITY NAME: | KIBABI UNIVERSITY
Brezk down of Transfen fom the State Departmeat of Undversity Education and Reseunh
Fy 20192020
Transaction Refereqcr =it Amount |KShs} Efo hich e
Date amonnie relate
& | Recurrent Grants
STATE DEPT LUNI
G070
/REC/ 0020013213 = 50,723,315 90 Y018/
STATE DEPT UNI/REC /0020014731 . ssmicss A 30,863,027 FY2019/ 2020
STATE DEPT 29082719
LINI A REC  DOT4515 i S0 853 (7 FY2018/ 3020
STATE DEPT UNI/BEC /0020014658 R 50,863 FYRII0/ 2020
STATE DEPT UM/ REC IO 498 i Si.6aE3.028 FY2019 ) 2030
STATE DEFT UNI/REC/ 020015304 S : FY2018/ 20030 |
STATE DEPT UNI/REC /0020015374 AETIERES S0L563 7 Py 9 200
STATE DEPT UNI/REC/ 0020015801 R 50,863,027 FY201%/ 2020
STATE DEPT LI/ BEC D020 5915 LA 30,863,028 P 2lis s 2
STATE DEFT UNI/REC Q20016315 o 50,843,007 Fi2a9, 2020
STATE DEPT UNI/REC/ 020016363 V.05, 50,863,025 FY2018,/2020
STATE DEPT UNI{REC/ 0020016580 e 54,863,028 §2016/ 2094 |
STATE DEPT UNI/REC,/D020017141 50,868,027 FY2018/2020
Total 661,07%,645.50
b. | Development Grants
STATE DEPT 1M1/ REC /0000001 220 | 20.11.20019 YL FYHID 2
STATE DEPT UNI/REC /0000007377 | 13.03. 2020 19,287,344 FY 3035 2020
| Totad 130424759

The above amounis have been communicated to and reconciled with the Ministry of Education

i

=

Deputy Finance Cificar Head of Avcowndng Undt
KIBABL UNIVERSITY MIMIETRY OF EDTRCTANDR

| | 2\
DAY e e DR oo aesmastea i

KSR LNIVERSITY
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